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To the Members of State Trustees Limited
The Financial Report
The accompanying financial report for the year ended 30 June 2012 of State Trustees Limited which comprises the statement of financial
position, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows, notes comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration, has been audited. The financial report
includes the consolidated financial statements of the consolidated entity, comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the
year’s end or from time to time during the financial year as disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements.
The Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

08 Strategic overview

The Directors of State Trustees Limited are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards, and the financial reporting requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, and for such internal control as
the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

10 Our performance

In note 2 (a), the Directors also state, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards that the financial report complies
with International Financial Reporting Standards.

12 Our products and services

Auditor’s Responsibility

20 Our people
24 Client and community engagement
30 Service excellence
33 Financial statements

As required by the Corporations Act 2001 and Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the
audit, which has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial report is free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The audit
procedures selected depend on judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, consideration is given to the internal control relevant to the company’s preparation
of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the eﬀectiveness of the company’s and the consolidated entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is suﬃcient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

This annual report details State Trustees’ business performance for the 2011 to 2012
financial year. At State Trustees we are committed to transparent and open reporting.
The report provides a concise summary of our performance for the financial year
ending 30 June 2012. It reviews our performance against our strategic objectives
and records our financial performance in accordance with the requirements of the
State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act 1994 and other regulatory requirements.
* All case studies that appear in this annual report are based on real client
experience. Names and other personal details have been changed in order
to protect confidentiality.
Any similarity between a person’s name and circumstances to the
scenario described here is unintended and coincidental.
State Trustees Limited ABN 68 064 593 148 AFSL No. 238037

Independence
The Auditor-General’s independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor General is not subject to direction by any person
about the way in which his powers and responsibilities are to be exercised. In conducting the audit, the Auditor-General, his staﬀ and delegates
complied with all applicable independence requirements of the Australian accounting profession and the Corporations Act 2001. I confirm that
I have given to the Directors of the company a written independence declaration, a copy of which is included in the Directors’ Report.
Opinion
In my opinion,
a) the financial report of State Trustees Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
i) giving a true and fair view of the company’s and the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2012 and of their financial
performance for the year ended on that date
ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001
b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 2 (a).
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Report
This auditor’s report relates to the financial report of State Trustees Limited for the year ended 30 June 2012 included both in State Trustees
Limited’s annual report and on the website. The Directors of State Trustees Limited are responsible for the integrity of State Trustees Limited’s
website. I have not been engaged to report on the integrity of State Trustees Limited’s website. The auditor’s report refers only to the subject
matter described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements.
If users of the financial report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard
copy of the audited financial report to confirm the information contained in the website version of the financial report.

D.D.R. Pearson Auditor-General
Melbourne 23 August 2012
Level 24, 35 Collins Street, Melbourne Vic. 3000
Telephone 61 3 8601 7000 • Facsimile 61 3 8601 7010
Email comments@audit.vic.gov.au • Website www.audit.vic.gov.au
Auditing in the Public Interest
Auditor General’s Report
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Company overview
We are an
important part
of the Victorian
community

State Trustees helps Victorians manage and administer their finances. For more
than 70 years, we have served the Victorian community by writing Wills and Powers
of Attorney, administering deceased estates and Trusts, and managing the finances
of those who need our help.
We take our responsibility to serve Victorians seriously, by balancing our commercial
interests with our community obligations. We believe everyone deserves access to
support they can trust regardless of their personal circumstances. As part of our
community commitment, we provide expert financial and legal assistance by acting
as administrator for more than 9,200 Victorians who are unable to look after their
own aﬀairs due to disability, mental illness or other circumstances.
Contributing to the welfare of Victorians
State Trustees makes a significant contribution to the welfare of Victorians through
our Client and Community Engagement programs.
• Our flagship connectedTM art exhibition provides a valuable opportunity for those
with a disability or experience of mental illness to have their creative talents
recognised in a public setting.
• Wholehearted Giving is our workplace-giving program that enables State Trustees
team members to make regular, personal financial donations.
• By partnering with Alzheimer’s Australia Vic, we have contributed funding to volunteer
training and recruitment and oﬀered a series of discounts on our products and services,
specifically designed to benefit their members.
• State Trustees is a proud sponsor of Seniors Festival, which delivered more than
1,000 events during October 2011, for seniors across Victoria.
Advocating for those in need
We take an active role in advocating for our clients on issues that aﬀect them. Financial elder
abuse, ageing, homelessness and disability are all areas we speak out on, on behalf of our
clients, to raise public awareness of their needs and support change that will improve their lives.

We help individuals by providing the following services:
• Will writing and Executor services
• Deceased Estate Administration
• Preparation of Enduring Powers of Attorney for financial,
medical treatment and guardianship
• Financial Attorneyship administration
• Financial Administration under VCAT administration orders
• Trust Administration
• Financial services including funds management,
funeral funds and taxation services
• Genealogical services.
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Chair’s report
As our population ages, more Victorians will
rely on State Trustees to manage their aﬀairs.
With this increasing demand ahead of us,
we recognised the need to transform our business
into one that can accommodate more clients,
without increasing our cost base.
Strategic transformation
Change is well underway to transform State Trustees into a more scalable, eﬃcient business. Early
in the year, we examined the processes we use in all areas, taking an end-to-end approach. Work
has begun streamlining these processes and eliminating duplication. This method aligns more
closely with our client-centric strategy. We can now spend time focusing on an individual client’s
complete needs, and address them as one organisation, in a wholehearted manner.
Moving closer to our clients
Our mandate is to serve all Victorians. With this objective in mind, we have made it a priority to
move physically closer to our clients, across Victoria, by decentralising our business. The new oﬃce
in Bendigo has been very successful and underpins our commitment to regional Victoria.
Board changes
During the year, the Board welcomed two new members, Dino Georgiou and Lindsay Smith.
Dino strengthens the Board’s commercial acumen, while his legal and regulatory expertise deepens
our concentration on our compliance obligations. Lindsay contributes considerable knowledge
and experience of the needs of regional Victoria, and is providing essential insights into
developing our decentralisation policy.
On behalf of myself and the Board, I thank Paula Allen, Joshua Bornstein and Annette Broadfoot
who retired from the Board this year. Their passion for achieving success for both State Trustees
and our clients was invaluable. During their period of service, the Board provided strategic direction
in shaping the transformation program that is currently underway. Although these members are
leaving, their contribution to the success of State Trustees will be felt for many years to come.
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Chair’s report

Our strong team
We are fortunate to have strong leaders and loyal staﬀ who are committed to State Trustees.
Never has this been more important than during our planning and preparation for business
transformation. I am proud to work with such a capable Corporate Leadership Team, and
I would like to thank Tony and the team for their diligence and business insight that made
working together with the Board so productive.
I take this opportunity to thank everyone at State Trustees for their hard work this year. I also
acknowledge the guidance and insight of The Honourable Kim Wells, Member of Parliament,
Treasurer of Victoria. The Treasurer’s candid dialogue with us helped shape our thinking
around the outcomes we need to achieve for the Community Service Agreement.
Looking ahead
The changes we are making to State Trustees today will transform our business into a
sustainable organisation that is capable of scaling up to meet the increasing needs of an
ageing Victorian community. I am excited to be part of a team that is transforming our
business. We will leave behind a legacy of change that will see State Trustees become
a stronger business that is able to meet the needs of all Victorians who need our help.

Julie Elliott
Chair

Chair’s Report
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Managing Director’s report
This has been a year of planning and changes for State Trustees. We have undertaken
a comprehensive strategic business review of State Trustees and strong foundations
for improvement have been laid.
Analysis of our business highlighted significant opportunities for improving our productivity and
eﬃciency. Working closely with the Board and Corporate Leadership Team, we have developed
blueprints for a more eﬃcient, productive business.
The program of business transformation focuses on improving the way we administer our processes
to both support, and allow more time for building resilient client relationships. As a key component
of our upcoming Business Transformation Program, every member of the State Trustees’ team will
be held more accountable for delivering both team and individual goals. In this way, we will build
a stronger business that focuses on meeting our clients’ needs.
Business Transformation Program
The transformation program will begin with improving our processes to make them more eﬀective
and eﬃcient. Our client facing teams have merged to support our strategy of having staﬀ spend
more time working directly with clients. By bringing our client facing team members together, and
allowing them to do what they do best, our clients will experience a more consistent level of service
that revolves around their needs. This will bring our business closer to our clients, and create a more
sustainable business model for our future.
Over time our objective is to have all administration processing in one area. Once consolidated, we
will standardise our processing and prepare to automate as many of these procedures as possible.
I am proud of the start we have made in building a better State Trustees; however, we have a long
way to go. The path to transformation will not always be smooth, but I am confident we will
succeed, because we have the right team of people in place.
Operating highlights
Operating profit, whilst in line with expectations, reflects the low returns from equity markets and our
need to improve eﬃciency. We are responding to this challenge by addressing our productivity through
our Business Transformation Program, however, the net result highlights our need to be funded by the
right level of Community Service Obligation contribution to help reduce significant cross subsidisation.
Strong progress has been made in bringing our business closer to our clients. State Trustees is now
well established in Dandenong, with our large team of staﬀ providing our complete range
of services to clients locally.
Our new Bendigo regional oﬃce opened on 16th July, 2012 and oﬀers our full suite of products and
services to the local community. The Bendigo oﬃce houses several important business operation
units, which have transferred from Melbourne. The Client Payments, Client Assets, Residents’ Trust
Fund, VCAT Exams and the Customer Contact Centre teams all relocated smoothly. Recruitment
continues for the 100 roles in Bendigo, with three quarters to be filled locally, and the remainder
filled by staﬀ who have chosen to relocate from Melbourne. Our staﬀ embraced the opportunity
to relocate, with many roles oversubscribed by staﬀ interested in moving.
We have also now agreed to tenancy for a new corporate headquarters at Footscray from
mid 2014. Detailed planning is well underway for this new oﬃce.
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Managing Director’s report

Community Services Agreement review
We are currently negotiating with the Department of Human Services for funding support
for their clients to whom we provide a range of services. The most significant funding is for
our Personal Financial Administration business, which provides a comprehensive range of
personal, legal, financial and asset management services for over 9,200 Represented Persons
whose disability, illness or injury prevents them from managing their own legal and financial
aﬀairs. This funding will assist us in implementing the recommendations of the performance
audit undertaken by the Victorian Auditor-General’s Oﬃce on Represented Persons.

I take this opportunity to thank our Chair, Julie
and the Board for their support and strategic
guidance. The Corporate Leadership Team and all
the staﬀ have worked hard this year building the
foundations we need for change. I thank them for
their commitment and look forward to working
with them on the challenges that lie ahead.

The Community Services Agreement negotiations must work towards identifying an appropriate
and sustainable level of funding which enables us to deliver the products and services the most
vulnerable Victorians need.
The transformations we are making to our business will help ensure we are serving these
clients as eﬃciently as possible. We need to secure an appropriate level of funding to enable
us to provide the right level of service to those the Victorian community wishes to support.
Legal review of guardianship legislation
Following the Law Reform Commission’s review of existing guardianship legislation, new types
of decision makers that can operate might be created. This change may significantly aﬀect
our business. State Trustees will work with colleagues in Government to ensure the resulting
changes to legislation will meet the intent of any policy changes and improve guardianship
for vulnerable Victorians.

Anthony (Tony) Fitzgerald
Managing Director

Branding work is delivering strong results
We have continued working on projects designed to improve awareness and perceptions of
the State Trustees’ brand. Results from recent brand awareness research show that, overall,
Victorians are becoming more aware of State Trustees, and have an increasingly positive
perception of our businesses.
State Trustees continues to be the most recognised trustee company operating in Victoria,
with over half those surveyed willing to consider using State Trustees for Will preparation,
Deceased Estate Administration or Personal Financial Administration services. These
results indicate a significant opportunity for us to increase our market share across
our range of products and services.
connected11 art exhibition
In its ninth year, State Trustees’ connected™ art exhibition was once again a success.
Showcasing works from new and emerging Victorian artists with a disability or an experience
of mental illness, this year more than 615 entries were received, and the curator was faced
with the diﬃcult challenge of narrowing the exhibition down to143 pieces. The connected
exhibition remains an important event in the State Trustees’ calendar and has become
a well recognised and quality exhibition.
Partnering for a stronger voice
Trustee Companies Association of Australia, of which State Trustees
was a founding member, was wound up this year. We moved to
become a sub-group within the auspices of the Financial
Services Council (FSC). By aligning our voice with that
of the FSC, State Trustees has a stronger voice and
representation when negotiating with Government,
industry regulators and the various Federal
and State departments we deal with.

Managing Director’s Report
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Our Purpose
To help Victorians with their financial needs
so they can make the most of their opportunities.

Our Vision
To be relevant, accessible and valued in the hearts
and minds of Victorians.

Our Values
Wholehearted – Committed, caring and united
Acting as one business with a clear purpose, ensuring our clients’
interests and those of the broader Victorian community
are at the heart of everything we do.

Understanding – Empathetic and compassionate
Understanding client needs and demonstrating this by delivering
empathy and compassion into every relationship.

Commercial – Professional, expert and client driven
Recognising that we operate in a commercial world. Being client
focused, delivering expert and professional advice in all areas
of the business, ensuring sustainable profitability and growth.

Integrity – Ethical and trusted
Always applying an ethical approach and creating
relationships with all clients, colleagues and stakeholders
built on trust and honesty.
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Corporate Leadership Team

Our Corporate Leadership Team
Anthony (Tony) Fitzgerald

Angela Burton

BBus CPA MAICD

Adv Dip.Acc MAICD

Managing Director
Joined State Trustees: June 2002

General Manager, Operations
Joined State Trustees: July 2003

Craig Dent

Vicki Hood

MBA FAIM MAICD

B.Com FAIM FFin MAICD

General Manager, Client Services
Joined State Trustees: February 2012

General Manager, Sales & Marketing
Joined State Trustees: May 2011

John Brennan

Prue Willsford

MBus MAICD CAHRI

LLB MAICD

General Manager, People & Strategy
Joined State Trustees: May 2005

General Manager, Corporate Operations
Joined State Trustees: February 2003

Our Corporate Leadership Team
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Strategic overview
Below is our strategic plan for the 2011 to 2012 financial year
Growth
Our growth strategy focuses on increasing revenue, client volume and market share across
our core and client generating businesses.
Client advocacy and community engagement
Our strategy focuses on aligning our corporate activities and corporate messages in a way
that demonstrates our active support to our clients.
Financial sustainability
Eﬀectively and eﬃciently managing the resources within the organisation, delivering
productivity improvements and assessing and managing risks in a changing environment.
People
Supporting the enablement of change in the 2011-2012 planning period.
Service excellence
Above all else, success under the Service Excellence strategic theme will be the demonstration
that changes to our operations truly deliver on the brand promise of “your interests at heart”.
Delivering on our corporate objectives
For more than 70 years, State Trustees has provided financial and legal services to Victorians
so they can make the most of their opportunities; balancing community obligations with
commercial focus.
State Trustees is the only trustee company in Australia that is both government owned and
also operates as a public company under the Corporations Act 2001 (C’wealth).
Corporatised in becoming a state-owned company in 1994, we have since developed a
competitive commercial operation that provides clients with protective fiduciary services.1
We perform our statutory obligations and operate a retail business undertaken for profit.
In the 2011/12 financial year, State Trustees continued to pursue our overall objective
of moving closer to clients. We progressed our program of regionalisation and
achieved the following:
• Work commenced on building our new Bendigo Regional Oﬃce;
• We undertook the transition program to relocate 100 roles to Bendigo;
• We finalised plans for construction of our new headquarters and Western Service Centre
at Footscray; and
• Our Dandenong Regional Oﬃce completed its first full year of operations, providing
all core services to our clients in the south east of Melbourne.

1 Under the State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act 1994 (Vic), State Trustees is legislatively obliged to oﬀer
a range of trustee, personal administration, and legal and financial services as a provider of last resort.
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Strategic overview

Moving closer to our clients was also achieved through the following outcomes:
• We continued to strive for growth in our business, and achieved a profit result in excess of our
stated objectives in one of the most diﬃcult operating environments we had experienced;
• We reviewed all our business operations and committed to a program of change and renewal,
which will accelerate in the 2012/13 financial year;
• To ensure our financial sustainability we reduced the number of managers in our business
and increased the span of responsibility of those remaining; and
• The Victorian Auditor General completed a review of our Represented Persons business and
concluded that while we have good governance of our programs, operational improvements
are required to ensure that we can properly demonstrate that we act in their best interests and
in the least restrictive manner. To achieve this we are now implementing the new Australian
Guardianship and Administration Council performance standards as our benchmark standards.
Achieving a fairer Community Services Agreement outcome
The State of Victoria is required to provide access to statutory administration and legal services
for the Victorian public including those who due to disability, illness or injury are unable to
manage their own financial and legal aﬀairs, if they cannot aﬀord to obtain the services
for themselves. State Trustees exists as the State’s professional trustee and operates under
legislation to provide these services.
State Trustees has a long standing Community Services Agreement with the Department
of Human Services which amongst other things, provides payments to State Trustees as
reimbursement when the services we are required to provide are unable to be paid
for by the client.
The current Community Services Agreement is now largely unchanged in 10 years. During the year
we negotiated with the Department of Human Services to renew the contract. We were not able
to reach an agreement, and have rolled the existing contract over for a final 12-month period.
We will work closely in the current financial year with both the Department of Human Services
and the Department of Treasury and Finance to achieve an outcome by June 2013 that is
satisfactory for all involved.

Our performance

At State Trustees, we have a comprehensive
measurement and reporting framework
that encompasses strategic and business
performance.
This section provides a snapshot of some
of our key metrics while other achievements
and metrics are included throughout the
annual report.

Financial performance –
revenue and profit
Revenue
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Our revenue is derived from the fees we charge for our
products and services and government contracts.
A large portion of our revenue comes from capital and
income commission. As such the impact of changing asset
values, including property, equity markets and interest
rates flow through to our financial performance.
Profit
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Profit after tax
Earnings before corporate investments,
strategic items and tax

Over the three-year period our earnings before corporate
investments, strategic items and tax have continued to decline.
Initially this was due to the impact of the global financial crisis
and, subsequently, the nature of our Community Services
Agreement. Earnings before corporate investments, strategic
items and tax have dropped from $1.9m in 2009/10 to $1.1m
in 2010/11 and now, in 2011/12, are $0.7m. In addition to this
we are continuing our strategic focus on being more accessible
to Victorians. This has had an impact on our profit after tax,
which currently sits at $120,000.
State Trustees’ commitment to business transformation will
continue to improve the eﬃciency and eﬀectiveness of our
services and have a direct positive impact on future profits.
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Our performance

Products and services

Client feedback

The number of new Deceased Estates

Each year State Trustees gathers client feedback
across our Retail and Personal Financial
Administration (PFA) services via the Client Value
Index (CVI) survey. In 2012, we spoke to 1,560
clients about their experience with State Trustees
and our performance against expectations.
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The number of new Deceased Estates
slightly decreased from 1,207 in 2010/2011
to 1,113 in 2011/2012.
The number of Will documents
produced
2700

CVI Score: Personal Financial
Administration clients
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During 2011/2012 we wrote 2,678 Wills.
The number of Wills produced has increased
by 195 from the total written during
2010/2011.
The number of Enduring
Powers of Attorney prepared
1000
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Our PFA clients are those whose financial and legal
aﬀairs we administer under a VCAT order. The PFA
CVI score is a composite score out of 100 that
measures both the perception that State Trustees
acts in the best interests of clients, and willingness
to recommend us to others. Both clients and
members of their support network are surveyed.
CVI Score: Retail clients
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The number of Enduring Powers of Attorney
prepared increased from 742 in 2010/2011
to 902 in 2011/2012.
The number of new VCAT orders
1100

Our retail clients use Will writing and Executor
services, Trustee, Attorneyship and Taxation
services. The Retail Services CVI score is a composite
score out of 100, which measures preference
for State Trustees over competitors, willingness
to buy more of our services and likelihood of
recommending us to others.
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The number of new orders to State Trustees
from VCAT increased slightly between
2010/2011 and 2011/2012.

Our performance
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Our products and services
Deceased Estate Administration
Providing peace of mind to individuals and those they care about

Client feedback provides valuable
insights into our performance
At State Trustees we value and
actively seek feedback from our
clients through a number of formal
and informal feedback processes. We
use a structured program of research
to generate information about how
our business is performing and have
a variety of diﬀerent tools to regularly
capture feedback from clients. Data
from these tools is complemented
by research about the markets
we operate in, which provides
rich information our business
leaders can use.
An ongoing way in which we gain our
clients’ perspective on our business
is generated from our annual client
feedback program, known as the
Client Value Index (CVI). Clients from
across the business are interviewed to
find out their opinion of State Trustees,
our products and services, as well
as their experiences of interactions
with our staﬀ.
By taking a structured approach to
market research and client feedback,
we are able to produce objective,
compelling information our
business can rely on.
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Our products and services

State Trustees has been helping to administer deceased estates for more than
70 years. We are trusted to fulfil the role of executor for the estates of those who
have died, making us fully accountable for all the executor responsibilities. We
provide peace of mind for families who know that with State Trustees as executor,
their loved one’s estate is handled professionally and impartially.
Our clients trust us
Feedback from clients captured throughout the year confirmed that clients continue
to believe we oﬀer a friendly, professional service, and that our team acts with integrity
at all times. Clients validated our trusted position by stating that, in their opinion, our
main strength as a business is in “looking after their interests.”
Victorians continue to rely on professional executors
During 2011, we undertook a comprehensive study about executors and beneficiaries.
The study sought to uncover common perceptions about the role of the executor and
the reasons why individuals choose to appoint organisations, such as State Trustees,
to perform the executor role.
Analysis revealed 40% of those aged over 45 were aware they had been nominated
as an executor, with those in the 55 to 64 year old group the most likely to actually
perform the role. The study found mixed perceptions about the role of the executor;
while many felt it was a privilege to be chosen, it could also be a burden.
The study uncovered interesting insights into the reasons why a professional executor,
such as State Trustees is appointed. While the majority of people wanted to avoid
making mistakes, or to ensure impartiality, those who chose State Trustees placed
a greater importance on our provision of an end-to-end service.

“They were very competent and whenever
there was anything I needed to sort out
they knew what the next step was.”Client

Wills and Executor Services
State Trustees is a market-leader in Will preparation
Research has shown that clients choose State Trustees to express their final wishes
knowing that our dedicated Will-writing legal team possesses the extensive specialist
experience to prepare clear, legally-robust Wills. Today we write more Wills for Victorians
than any other organisation.
Our annual client survey confirmed that an overwhelming proportion (97%) of clients see
our staﬀ as expert Will-writers, while, over 95% would recommend State Trustees to others.
Clients recognised our high service standards too, with 95% stating their Will was prepared
in a timely manner.
Potential exists to expand our Wills business
Market research conducted during the year sought to understand our position in the Will
market, and the process clients go through when choosing an organisation to prepare their
Will. Our research found only half of all Victorians have a Will, although the majority of those
without a Will said they were yet to “get around to it.” Life events including the birth of a child
or the death of a relative were the most common triggers to preparing a Will. Age also played
a part in the likelihood that a person has a Will. Will ownership increases exponentially from
35 years of age with almost everyone having one by 65.

“ I think they do the Wills well, ask the
right questions, making sure it’s all in
place and that there is an independent
third person there to make sure that it’s
looked after.” Client

Our Products & Services
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Enduring Powers of Attorney
Powers of Attorney are critical for protecting Victorians from abuse
State Trustees’ Enduring Powers of Attorney services enable clients to choose a trusted friend,
relative or organisation to make important decisions on their behalf when they need it most.
Our team prepares financial Enduring Powers of Attorney, medical Enduring Powers of Attorney,
as well as Enduring Powers of Guardianship.
It is an unfortunate reality that many older and vulnerable Victorians, particularly those who are
isolated, suﬀer financial and emotional abuse. Abusers can be family members, neighbours,
carers or friends. State Trustees has seen cases where loans have been taken out, every-day
bills allowed to accumulate, and the ownership of assets transferred to directly benefit abusers.
State Trustee helps clients protect their interests
When we are asked to become involved, we carefully evaluate our client’s situation and needs,
and where appropriate, recommend they put all three Powers of Attorney in place to protect
their wellbeing. These documents can enable our clients to get the every-day help they need
managing their situation from those they trust to have their best interests at heart.
State Trustees looks at a client’s whole situation and considers what we can do to help them
manage all their needs. In certain circumstances our team will even arrange for a Justice
of the Peace to visit a client in their home to witness the signing of documents.
Acting as Attorney for those who need our help
Where financial abuse has occurred, it is often the case that a person does not have anyone
trustworthy they can rely on to help them manage their finances. State Trustees can help
by assuming this responsibility and acting as their Attorney.
By choosing State Trustees as Attorney, our clients know we always act independently and
honestly, with our sole focus being on carrying out their wishes. Some clients nominate us
because they have no one else they can rely on, while others wish to relieve the significant
burden of managing their finances from those they care about. Either way, with State Trustees
on their side, our clients can relax knowing their finances are in capable hands.
Our clients trust us to act in their best interests

“I’m just so thankful
for the guidance and
information.” Client

14

Our products and services

Clients who provided feedback through our annual survey were overwhelmingly positive about
our people, service and competence, with 88% of respondents stating they would recommend
State Trustees to others. An exceptionally high proportion of those in the group, more than
97%, agreed that our staﬀ were professional, friendly, technically capable and delivered
results in a timely manner. These are very strong, pleasing results.

State Trustees in action
Ian* and Joan* have enjoyed many happy years as a family living with their two children
Christopher* and Wendy*. Their adult children continued to live with them, as Wendy
suﬀers from epilepsy and Christopher doesn’t work.
When Ian fell ill and was diagnosed with cancer, the doctors also found Joan to be malnourished
and moved them both to hospital to receive treatment. Once their medical conditions stabilised,
Joan and Ian moved into care facilities close to one another, so they could receive the
support they needed.
Unable to stay at home with her brother, Wendy moved into a care home where she could be
helped with her epilepsy. Concerned relatives contacted State Trustees for help when they
discovered Wendy was being charged an amount double that of her pension to stay in the
home. Clearly her situation was unsustainable and needed to be sorted out.
Our team met with both Ian and Joan to discuss their aﬀairs and prepare a Financial Enduring
Power of Attorney for them. Following their instructions, we transferred the car and utility
bills into their son’s name. Ian had also been a member of the Masonic Lodge for 65 years.
State Trustees arranged a ceremony for his 65-year medal presentation at his bedside,
with a morning tea afterwards held in his honour.
State Trustees also met with Wendy to help sort out her aﬀairs and put in place a Financial
Enduring Power of Attorney. We helped facilitate Wendy’s move into the same hostel as
her mother, which charged only part of her total pension, leaving Wendy with money
for every-day expenses.
When Ian died, he had nominated Joan as the Executor of his Will, with Christopher
as a substitute. Joan did not feel up to fulfilling the role, and rather than referring
the responsibility to Christopher, she appointed State Trustees as Executor.
Joan and Wendy are both very happy to be living together, receiving
the care they need, supported by State Trustees. They know
that State Trustees will seek to carry out Ian’s wishes,
as he would have wanted.

Caring for her sons with our help
When Travis* and Thomas* lost their father at the ages of 8 and 9
respectively, the boys still had many years ahead of them before they
could become independent and support themselves. Their father’s
superannuation death benefit payment was put into trust for each boy,
to be administered until they reached 18 years of age, with the funds able
to be used for their maintenance, education, advancement and benefit.
The lawyer who established the trusts retired as trustee in July 2010.
The boys’ mother took the opportunity to move management of the
trusts over to State Trustees where she was an existing client. Their
mother had been happy with the excellent level of service and standard
of management she had received, so it made sense to make the switch.
Since we began administering the trusts for Travis and Thomas, we have
made funds available for their medical, healthcare and educational
needs. Both boys are very musical and have achieved high levels of
certification in the multiple instruments they play. Travis and Thomas
are members of school orchestras, with one a member of a prominent
choir, which represents Australia on the international stage. Their
mother is reassured that when we need to release funds to pay for
their involvement in overseas music tours, we are acting impartially
and professionally, supporting the long-term interests of her children.

Trusts
Trusts enable Victorians to financially provide for others
Trusts are an important tool people use to safeguard their assets for beneficiaries.
State Trustees helps Victorians establish and manage a range of trusts designed
for diﬀerent purposes.
The most common trust types are:
• Testamentary Trust: established by your Will to manage your Estate’s assets and
income for your beneficiaries after you die.
• Minor’s Trust: designed to manage and protect assets for a child until they reach
a specified age.
• Inter-Vivos Trust: set up during your lifetime to support beneficiaries, such
as a family member with disabilities.
• Injury and Compensation Trust: designed to protect and manage money
paid in compensation for the beneficiary’s injury, such as WorkCover or TAC.
• Superannuation Minor’s Trust: to hold a child’s interest in your superannuation
benefit upon your death.
• Special Disability Trust: set up to help immediate family members and guardians
provide for the future of children with a disability.
• Charitable Trust: designed to provide on-going benefits to eligible charitable
organisations or charitable purposes.
When appointed, State Trustees can also act as Trustee, fulfilling all the duties and
responsibilities required of the role. At 30 June 2012, our business was responsible
for managing 3,034 trusts with $504,854,839 in funds under management.
Our trusts business also includes the State Trustees Australia Foundation, which enables
clients to direct their philanthropic contributions eﬃciently and easily, without the need
for complicated administration. We currently administer 234 charitable trusts, with funds
under management totalling $63,998,320.
Clients agree that their assets are safe with State Trustees
We spoke with more than 340 Trustee Service clients during the annual client survey.
The clear majority of clients (86%) feel that their assets are safe with State Trustees,
and for many, this is the most important factor in choosing a Trustee.

“They handle
everyone’s personal
business well, treating
them as individuals
rather than just
pushing them
through...” Client

Our survey also found that from an operational perspective, our Trusts business is
easy to deal with. Nine in ten clients who had submitted applications for funds were
satisfied with the process.
Our team continues to be one of our most important assets for developing and retaining
clients. More than 90% of those who provided feedback agreed that State Trustees staﬀ
are friendly, professional, act with integrity and have a sound knowledge of our products.

Our products and services
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Personal Financial Administration
Our clients can rely on us to consistently act in their best interests
Clients in our Personal Financial Administration business are among the most vulnerable
in our community. It is crucial that when they deal with us they are confident we are
working in their best interests. Survey feedback, received from more than 450 clients
and their support network over the year, found that 84% agree that State Trustees
acts in the best interests of our clients.
Respect for our clients was also a strong theme in client feedback, with more than 80%
of respondents agreeing that our Personal Financial Administration teams are friendly,
professional, honest, and treat clients fairly and with respect. Clients also valued our
support in helping them save money; an important consideration for nine in ten clients.

“ It’s a load oﬀ your shoulders.
Things like utilities are sent there
and they are paid. Making decisions
about bills is hard work sometimes,
especially when you have a
mental illness.” Client
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Improving the quality of life
for the most disadvantaged
Now aged 59, John* has experienced a diﬃcult life. He was removed from
his Indigenous birth parents, becoming a ward of the state at 4 years old.
Early on in life he was incorrectly diagnosed with a mental illness. This
created significant problems for John during his childhood, which he spent
living in various boys’ homes and institutions.
In 1990, John was involuntarily hospitalised with an acquired brain injury.
The social worker assigned to his case at the time applied to the Victorian
Civil and Administrative Tribunal to have his finances managed by
State Trustees to help provide financial stability for John.
State Trustees has since worked closely with John to advocate for
him and protect his financial interests so he can receive the care and
entitlements he deserves. His extensive history of repeated incarcerations
and severe substance abuse place John in a vulnerable position and he
is likely to become homeless without adequate support. We have used
our connections with community agencies to find John a home, and by
managing his fortnightly pension on his behalf, we ensure his rent,
utility and medical bills are paid correctly and on time.
As financial administrator, we have also investigated potential
claims on John’s behalf as a member of the Stolen Generation
and through the Victims of Crime Assistance Tribunal. With
State Trustees advocating for John, he knows his finances
are taken care of, and that he has a powerful partner who
will be there to act on his behalf when he needs us.

Our people
Employee engagement

Despite significant
organisational
change, our team
remains engaged
and committed
to contributing
to our goals.

The 2011 employee engagement survey measured the relationship between employee
performance and organisational performance. The survey quantifies individual staﬀ member’s
sense of loyalty, their attachment to State Trustees as an employer, and their commitment
to achieving our goals.
Participation in the survey was higher this year, with 82.30% of staﬀ participating, up from
80.00% last year. This high level of participation helps ensure the results are reliable, and
the conclusions we can draw from the data is accurate.
Although the overall engagement outcome of 69.94% is fractionally below that of the
national benchmark of 70.75%, and lower than our 2010 result of 72.00%, our team remains
highly committed. We would expect engagement to drop during periods of uncertainty and
change. The robustness of our overall engagement result directly reflects the high quality
of our leadership team.
Those in positions of leadership have instilled confidence and a clear sense of purpose
to everyone aﬀected by our business transformation program. It is clear that people
understand why the changes are happening and what they need to do to build a
sustainable business in the future.
We have the right people in the right roles
89%

I am confident about my ability to do my job
Our people are committed to State Trustees

87%

My work is very important to me
Our team are focused on achieving success

86%

I am prepared to go the extra mile in my job

State Trustees has a productive work culture
Our employees are satisfied with the level of challenge they face at work and feel
they are adequately supported to produce quality results.
I can give equal priority to work
and family/personal life

68%
65.62%

My opinion is valued by my team
leader or manager and colleagues

74%
71%

Informal feedback is given throughout
the year to support my actions

72%
64.79%

My job is mentally stimulating

77%
73.50%

My colleagues are committed to
quality outcomes

79%
75.25%
State Trustees
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National

Building a better business through our people
Investing in our most important asset
As our business develops, so do the demands on our staﬀ. We are supporting our staﬀ
through the changes in our business by focusing on providing practical opportunities
for professional development.
Over the past 12 months, we have invested close to $100,000 in training and development.
That significant investment enabled 107 employees to enrol in more than 150 courses
and programs.
At the same time as encouraging our staﬀ to improve their skills, we have fine-tuned our
approach to ensure we are investing wisely. We have rolled out a Capability Development
Program, which better matches the skill needs of individual roles with the abilities and
knowledge of those in each role.

Our people are
learning and
developing their
skills to better
meet the needs
of our clients.

Focusing development on practical skills
The Capability Development Program, launched in 2011, has played a critical role in
developing the skills and expertise of our people. The Program provides a framework
for discussions between employees and managers about their development, outside
of the regular performance management system.
Discussions begin by evaluating an individual’s capabilities against the competencies defined
as relevant for their roles. Managers work with team members to identify appropriate training
and skills development opportunities that will help address any gaps. This approach ensures
that learning and development activities directly support each person’s performance in their role.
Supporting our people in new roles
We have been looking closely at ways we can improve the existing training provided to
those who are new to client-facing roles. This year we have trialled a new, more structured
approach. We have developed a suite of standard materials and processes that improve
consistency in the training we provide. Early feedback has been very positive. We expect
to expand the program into the Estates, Trusts, and Attorneyships businesses as part
of the Business Transformation Program.

People
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Regional structure supports business strategy
In January 2012 we adjusted our operating model in line with our evolving regional service
delivery network. This change to providing services at a regional level was the next stage
in delivering our strategy of moving closer to our clients.
With the opening of the new Bendigo Regional Oﬃce building in mid-2012, we were ready
to reorganise our service delivery teams around the geographical service delivery model.
Under the leadership of Regional Managers, a new Client Services Division was established,
incorporating all core product lines to support the three new regions: North (Bendigo);
West (Melbourne CBD transitioning to Footscray in 2014); and East (Dandenong).
In addition, we established an Operations Division dedicated to directly supporting the
Client Services Division. The Operations Division provides key support services to consultants
in the Client Services division, enabling the Client Services team to focus their time
on the needs of our clients.
In addition to the structural adjustments, we reduced the overall number of management
roles. Management positions have increased their spans of control, directly demonstrating
our determination to operate more eﬃciently. Not only will these structural adjustments
increase accountability, but they will also reduce our overhead costs.
The changes we have made to our structure and to management roles will benefit
our clients and State Trustees by building a more sustainable business.

Introducing our first Regional Manager
Melanie Lewis returned from Maternity Leave at a time when State Trustees was
in major transition. She applied and was successful in becoming our first Regional
Manager for the western region.
As Regional Manager (West Region), Melanie is responsible for managing all Represented
Persons services, as well as for managing teams undertaking Deceased Estate, Trust and
Enduring Power of Attorney administration in the western region. In this role, Melanie has
become the public face of Client Services in the west of Melbourne and through western
Victoria. She now holds a high-profile position with clear accountability for stakeholder
engagement across the region.
In the nine years Melanie has worked for State Trustees she has held a number of
management roles, from Personal Financial Solutions Manager to manager of our
Little Bourke Street oﬃce where the Intensive Needs team provide a service to our most
vulnerable. She has a thorough understanding of the business, built over many years.
Along with providing a more comprehensive service to clients, Melanie thinks the new
approach encourages a higher level of accountability within the business. The actions of
her teams have a direct impact on clients’ lives and she sees the impact of these actions
from both a revenue and cost perspective in an immediate way.
Melanie is excited about State Trustees’ future. Not only has her role expanded to
become more rewarding, but she can already see the benefits the changes are
having on client experience.
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Employee snapshot

We support
equality and
fairness in our
workplace.

State Trustees employs people with a mix of abilities and professional backgrounds, as well
as people from diﬀerent cultures and ethnicities. We have employees with physical disabilities,
hearing impairments, and vision impairments and are proud to include a seeing-eye dog
in our team. State Trustees has adapted our workplace and job requirements so that all
employees have every opportunity to reach their full potential.
We understand the need for flexibility for those with responsibilities outside the workplace.
As part of our commitment to our employees, we encourage our people to make use of our
flexible working arrangements, so they can fulfil all their commitments to their work, their
family and their community.
Gender balance

Gender balance in leadership roles

33% Male

51% Male

67% Female

49% Female

Workplace flexibility

Balance of employee ages

23% Part time

18 to 24 years - 4%

77% Full time

25 to 34 years - 33%
35 to 44 years - 32%
45 to 54 years - 18%
55+ years - 13%

Our People
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Working in the community

We have worked
with a number of
organisations in
the community
to ensure the
interests of our
clients and others
with similar needs
are protected.

Resolving tax issues
State Trustees administers the financial aﬀairs for individuals, who through disability, illness
or injury, need help managing their finances. We are appointed by the Victorian Civil and
Administrative Tribunal to make financial decisions on behalf of individuals that are in their best
interests. For some clients it has been several years since their finances have been in order. We
often work with a number of diﬀerent organisations to get our clients’ finances back on track.
The following example shows how our team works hard to advocate for our clients to achieve
the right outcome.
State Trustees was appointed to be John’s* administrator after he suﬀered a brain injury. At the
time of appointment John had not completed tax returns or BAS statements for several years.
Our tax team worked through the outstanding obligations and quickly brought the outstanding
tax matters up-to-date. The total amount of John’s tax liability including penalties was $90,000.
We applied to the Australian Taxation Oﬃce on John’s behalf for the penalties to be waived
because of his illness. Our first application was refused on the grounds that the Australian
Taxation Oﬃce needed medical proof before it could waive the penalties.
State Trustees went to VCAT to obtain permission to release the necessary medical information
to the Tax Oﬃce to prove that were it not for John’s brain injury, he would have been able to meet
his obligations and payments. The Australian Taxation Oﬃce accepted our second application,
and waived $36,100 in outstanding penalties owed by John. The hard work undertaken by
State Trustees tax team resulted in a great outcome for John.
Maintaining access for all to Melbourne’s public transport payment system
Melbourne’s myki public transport ticketing system requires passengers to use a smart card
that stores value to pay for fares. We recognised that a group of our clients, who do not have
capacity to manage such card accounts, would be significantly aﬀected by the change over
from Metcards to myki. Without the ability to operate a myki card, these clients, who in many
cases rely on public transport as their only way to get around, would eﬀectively become
stranded by the ticketing system change. Clients would not only lose their independence,
but would be unable to attend medical appointments, and could lose access to vital
community support they rely on.
In late 2011, State Trustees together with other key community service organisations’ initiated
a meeting with the Transport Ticketing Authority to advocate for the needs of our clients.
The Transport Ticketing Authority (TTA) and Public Transport Victoria (PTV) were receptive to our
concerns, and let us know they would begin work on a ticketing solution that would better meet
the needs of our clients. We agreed it would make sense to open the discussion to others to
ensure the solution would meet the needs of all public transport users.
Following further consultations for a solution, TTA and PTV developed a paper-based ticket,
which it presented to more than 30 community service organisations in April 2012. The
paper-based tickets, called a Day Pass, allow ticket holders to travel all day on public transport
services in Zones 1 & 2 in Melbourne at a cost of $3.30. Ticket holders will not need to present
concession cards on the public transport system to prove their entitlement to travel on a Day
Pass. Most importantly though, this group of people who rely heavily on the Melbourne public
transport system will not lose their mobility and independence thanks to the commitment
of the TTA and PTV to listen and take action from concerns raised by State Trustees and
the community service organisations.
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Advocating for insurance benefits
State Trustees has been successfully advocating for clients to receive insurance benefits they are entitled to
through their superannuation funds. It is not uncommon for clients to be unable to claim for themselves when
they are struck with a major illness, or become totally and permanently disabled. These clients have insurance in
place to provide for these circumstances, however, once they become unwell, they might not have the capacity
to complete the paperwork required to make the claim.
The following two case studies are real situations experienced by our clients.
Life insurance benefit
At age 55, Thomas* was diagnosed with Bipolar disorder, and was unable to manage his finances. When
State Trustees was appointed in October 2011 to manage Thomas’s financial aﬀairs, Thomas’s business
was in liquidation, and he had a considerable amount of personal debt outstanding.
Shortly after becoming our client, Thomas was diagnosed with terminal cancer. State Trustees immediately
contacted his superannuation fund and instructed our solicitor to find out if he would be eligible to claim
on his fund’s disability insurance policy. When it was confirmed that he could claim, we asked for the payment
to be expedited, due to the terminal nature of his illness. In addition, we made a claim on Thomas’s behalf on
his active life insurance policy.
Within six weeks of instructing the solicitor, we received just over $140,000 for Thomas from his
superannuation fund, and an additional $467,000 from his life insurance provider.
Disability insurance benefit
Catherine* became a State Trustees client in January 2011 after she became totally and permanently disabled.
State Trustees began investigating her potential sources of income. We instructed our solicitor to identify
any funds through which we could pursue a Total Permanent Disability insurance claim on Catherine’s
behalf from her superannuation.
Once the solicitor had identified Catherine’s superannuation funds, we began the claim process, seeking
medical records and employer statements.
After a full year of work, we were able to secure a Total Permanent Disability insurance payment in arrears dating
back to Catherine’s last day of work. We were also able to establish the regular fortnightly insurance benefit
payments for the rest of Catherine’s life. We project that her total claim amounts to more than $800,000.
Commitment to client issues delivers results
At the heart of our business is our commitment to wholeheartedly embrace our clients’ needs. In practice, this
means having an unrelenting persistence to resolving important issues our clients face. Jessica Paley’s outstanding
work advocating for our clients earned her our Pegasus Award.
In her role as Senior Assistant to the Administration Support Team, Jessica works with clients to ensure telecom
services they buy meet their service needs, as well as any medical needs, while being aﬀordable for them. She
ensures that clients understand what they are buying and how to use the services.
Jessica works with both the client and the telecom service provider to ensure there is a good fit between the
service being provided, and the needs of the individual client. Over the five years she has been with State Trustees,
Jessica has built a productive working relationship with the major telecoms companies to help match clients with
the most appropriate services. Her commitment to achieving success for our clients resulted in one client having
a $22,000 debt waived following over five months of ongoing communication with the telecom provider. Jessica’s
persistence demonstrates her wholehearted approach to achieving the best outcomes for our clients.

Client and community engagement
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Engaging with our clients and community
across Victoria
connected11™
State Trustees’ connected art exhibition is a highly celebrated event open to new and emerging
Victorian artists with a disability or an experience of mental illness. The annual exhibition provides
artists and the Victorian community with the opportunity to come together and experience the
rich and diverse creative talents of these individuals, and honour the creative contribution they
make to our community.
The connected11 exhibition was held between 12 and 21 August, 2011 at No Vacancy Gallery,
QV Building in the heart of Melbourne. More than 140 pieces were selected and displayed,
including works on paper, paintings, sculpture and poetry. The exhibition was colourful and
inspiring, and left a lasting impression on those who visited.
Vouchers for art supplies were awarded in a number of diﬀerent categories. We were fortunate
to have the Treasurer, The Honourable Kim Wells, Member of Parliament, present the winners
with their prizes. Hugh Berry won this year’s first prize of $750 for his artwork Landscape. Second
prize of $500 was awarded to Andrew Blackmore for Blue Horse and third prize of $250 was won
by Rahki James for Cats. The annual Allan Merigan’s People’s Choice Award was awarded to
Ying Chi for her artwork Picturesque Collection.

Left to right
Hugh Berry ‘Landscape’
Andrew Blackmore ‘Blue Horse’

The exhibition also provides visitors with the opportunity to purchase original art with all
proceeds from sales going directly to the artists. More than 40% of pieces available for purchase
at connected11 were sold, with a further sixteen pieces commissioned by visitors to the exhibition.
On all fronts connected11 was extremely successful. We are proud of our association with this
unique event and look forward to next year’s exhibition, where we can again bring artists and
the Victorian community together.

Rahki James ‘Cats’

“Just beautiful – I love every picture.
Also beautifully presented –
an honour to be selected!” Artist
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Ying Chi ‘Picturesque Collection’

“ Inspiring and entertaining
and provocative
all at the same time.” Visitor

Client and Community Engagement

Partnering with Alzheimer’s Australia Vic to support Victorians
Over many years, State Trustees has enjoyed a proud association with Alzheimer’s Australia Vic,
which shares our dedication to helping and advocating for those with dementia. Alzheimer’s
Australia Vic is part of a federated organisation, which provides information, support,
counselling, training and education to people with dementia, their families and carers,
as well as to professionals working in the dementia field.
Supporting the Alzheimer’s Australia Vic Volunteer Program
The $87,168 raised at the 2011 State Trustees Ball was put to work this year, supporting the
Volunteer Training and Recruitment Program. This important program develops and assists
Alzheimer’s Australia Vic volunteers.
Volunteers play a vital role in delivering services directly to those in the community, including
being advisors on the National Dementia Helpline, role-playing for education sessions,
presenting at community speaking engagements, along with administrative support tasks.
State Trustees’ funding contributed towards the ongoing costs of training and supporting
these dedicated volunteers.
Sharing knowledge and experience with volunteers
State Trustees has worked directly with Alzheimer’s Australia Vic volunteers to help them
understand VCAT hearings and the legal processes in place designed to support those with
dementia. During the year, volunteers have attended hearings with members of State Trustees,
and had direct access to our subject matter experts. This unique insight helps volunteers on
the National Dementia Helpline more easily explain the system and processes to their callers.
Providing aﬀordable Will writing services to Alzheimer’s Australia Vic Members
This year we introduced a discount to the fee we charge for writing Wills for those who are
members of Alzheimer’s Australia Vic. By making this service more aﬀordable, we hope to
encourage more Victorians to prepare for the future with a sound Will.
Seniors Festival
The Victorian Seniors Festival in October is a celebration of the important contribution older
Victorians make to our community. The week-long festival of music, sport, shows and theatre
provides an empowering opportunity for seniors to participate in group events across Victoria.
State Trustees works closely with our senior clients every day, and we see the vital role
they play in our community as leaders, mentors, carers and volunteers. We believe it is
appropriate to celebrate this often-overlooked group of individuals who provide so
much for the Victorian community.
We were proud to be a major sponsor of the 2011 Seniors Festival, which attracted over
135,000 seniors to festival events. Our sponsorship included the Seniors Variety Concert
held at the Melbourne Town Hall on 6 October 2011, and the State Trustees Country Concert
Series, a series of 20 live performances across regional Victoria featuring local performers
including Wendy Stapleton, Ernie Sigley and Jamie Redfern.
State Trustees was also the major sponsor of the Festival Hub within the Melbourne Town Hall
which attracted over 6,000 visitors, many of whom stopped by our booth and attended our free
information sessions, where our team of experts discussed Wills, Enduring Powers of Attorney,
Executor Services and the importance of preparing for the future.
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Service excellence
Building a better Represented Persons business
The audit of State Trustees by the Victorian Auditor-General’s Oﬃce (VAGO) was tabled in Parliament
in February 2012. The report identified a number of areas where we need to improve our services for
represented persons. We accept the findings of the audit and are committed to continuously improving
our operations to better meet the needs of our clients.
The report included specific recommendations, which we are well on the way to implementing.
Significant work has been completed since the audit to upgrade our information and records
management areas. We have also made the recommended changes to our governance frameworks.
As a business, we understand that the quality of interaction we have with represented persons directly
aﬀects our ability to provide them with the support they need. VAGO’s audit highlighted the diﬃculty we
experience providing the necessary client engagement under the current Community Services Agreement
funding model. Expanding the level of contact we have with clients has resource implications.
Negotiations will continue with the Department of Human Services in relation to an appropriate and
sustainable level of funding as we move forward with implementation of the VAGO recommendations.
However, we accept that by making changes to increase eﬃciency, we can increase the resources we
have available for client contact.
Our Business Transformation Program (which includes a focus on improving eﬃciency) also commenced
in the second half of 2011-2012 and will continue into 2012-2013. We are streamlining our business
processes to build a more eﬃcient, scalable business. Work has already begun on standardising our
Represented Persons service model to meet legislative and compliance requirements, and to align
our processes to meet Australian Guardianship and Administration Council standards.
Importantly, we believe these changes will also improve client communications, record keeping,
client feedback and quality assurance concerns raised by the audit.
We take seriously our responsibility to do the very best we can for those we represent. State Trustees is
committed to improving our business so we can better serve those we have been entrusted to represent.

Consistently delivering results for clients
Our staﬀ continue to deliver services for our clients when and where they need us most.
Our staﬀ are committed to our clients and focused on their needs.
2009 to 2010
Unique website visitors

#

Homes managed through to sale

242

2010 to 2011

2011 to 2012

89,971

164,523

278

259

Community engagement presentations conducted and attendees
• Presentations

139

• Attendees

3,249

Number of payments processed on
behalf of represented persons
Number of VCAT exams conducted
Number of closed genealogical cases
Number of tax returns completed
Customer contact centre calls answered

339,714

368,498

358,085

5,421

5,718

5,767

634

632

608

7,271

6,862

6,842

263,621

279,031

274,539

# These numbers are indicative only and supplied by an external provider.
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Our presence across Victoria
Dandenong oﬃce delivering greater access for southern and eastern Victoria
Now in its third year of operation, our Dandenong oﬃce is delivering tangible benefits for
clients in the south and east of Victoria. Our local presence makes it possible for us to meet
face-to-face with more clients in the region, their carers and support networks. Regional
clients in the south and east of the State are also benefitting by having more convenient
contact options, they no longer have to travel to Melbourne to see us, and our team can
now visit more clients in the area.
This move closer to our clients has been particularly beneficial to those attending VCAT
hearings. Members of our Dandenong team can regularly attend VCAT in Dandenong,
Frankston, Highett, Ringwood, Mt Eliza and Berwick. We have also received positive client
feedback from other areas including Morwell, Sale, Korumburra, Traralgon, Bairnsdale,
Maﬀra, Dromana and Rosebud.
Members of VCAT have commented favourably on our increased attendance in local hearing
venues in Shepparton and Wangaratta. It is clear from the overwhelmingly positive feedback
that the Dandenong oﬃce is providing much-needed support for clients and those involved
in their care across southern and eastern Victoria.
Construction has begun at our new Footscray head oﬃce
Work has commenced on a new retail and head oﬃce for State Trustees, based in Footscray.
The new space will change the way we work with one another, supporting our transformation
to a more client-centric business. We will move to an open-plan space spread over only three
floors, rather than our current nine. This more contemporary style of open environment will
enable our staﬀ to work more closely together, as one team focused on the needs of our clients.
The new head oﬃce is being constructed by Grocon, and will form part of a larger complex with
government departments and agencies. We expect to begin occupying the site in July 2014.
Bendigo Oﬃce provides new opportunities
Construction began in Bendigo on a significant regional operations and retail oﬃce during July
2011. This new centre was completed and opened for business on 16 July 2012, delivering on
our commitment to move closer to our clients.
The move to Bendigo has created benefits for clients as well as State Trustees staﬀ. Residents of
Bendigo and surrounding districts in the north of Victoria no longer need to travel to Melbourne
to meet face-to-face with our staﬀ. This change is a significant improvement for clients. It will
help us serve our clients better with a richer understanding of their needs that can only
be gained through face-to-face client contact.
The new Bendigo oﬃce has provided opportunities for both local residents and ‘State Trustees’
employees alike. Of the 100 Bendigo-based roles, 25 have been filled by Melbourne staﬀ,
who with their families have chosen to relocate to Bendigo. The remaining 75 positions have
presented new employment opportunities for residents of Bendigo and surrounding districts.
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Residents Trust Fund benefits from Bendigo move
State Trustees manages and administers funds for more than 3,000 Victorians who need constant care and
supervision. These clients live in over 500 supported accommodation facilities across Victoria, which are run
by the Department of Human Services.
The Residents Trust Fund (RTF) was established by the Department of Human Services to manage and
administer funds for represented persons. RTF receives contributions on behalf of clients from private and public
administrators. These funds are used to pay for housekeeping, accommodation and general expenses incurred
by the represented persons living in supported accommodation facilities. State Trustees manages these payments
on behalf of clients as part of our role administering the fund.
When the Bendigo oﬃce opened, our team saw the opportunity to relocate and review their operations. In January
2012, hand over was completed, and the Bendigo team began managing the work using the newly refined
procedures and work practices identified by the review.
Relocating the RTF operations to Bendigo created a number of benefits beyond those we initially anticipated.
State Trustees has received positive feedback from both clients and the Department of Human Services regional
management, who are impressed by the changes brought about by the move and specifically commented on
the seamless transition of the team and the improved focus on client service. The move to Bendigo also provided
local employment opportunities as well as relocation opportunities for key leadership staﬀ at State Trustees.

Service excellence
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This financial statement covers both State Trustees Limited as an individual entity and the
consolidated entity consisting of State Trustees Limited and STL Financial Services Limited.
State Trustees Limited is a State-owned enterprise. Its registered oﬃce and principal
place of business is:
State Trustees Limited
168 Exhibition Street
Melbourne Vic. 3000
A description of the nature of the consolidated entity’s operations and its principal activities
is included in the Directors’ Report on pages 34-38, which is not part of this financial statement.
The financial statement was authorised for issue by the directors on 21 August 2012.
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Director’s Report

State Trustees Limited’s Board of Directors
has the pleasure of presenting the company
and economic entity’s financial statements
as at 30 June 2012.

1. Board of Directors
Directors of State Trustees Limited and STL Financial Services
Limited in oﬃce during the financial year, are:

Julie Elliott, MBA (Exec), BEc, FCA, MAICD, SA Fin

Anthony (Tony) Fitzgerald, BBus, CPA, MAICD

Appointed: 5 March 2008 (as Director), 1 December 2008 (as Chair)
[Non-Executive]

Appointed: 25 September 2003 [Executive]

Committees: Chair of the Business Transformation and
Remuneration Committees, Acting Chair of the Investment
Committee and Member of the Compliance and Audit Committees.
Experience: Julie is a Chartered Accountant and has a wealth
of experience in both global corporations and high-profile
public sector boards spanning more than 20 years.
Julie has held a range of senior and professional positions, including
Strategic Consulting for Firstwater, Global Head of Sales and Service,
Payments, National Australia Bank, General Manager, Strategy,
Marketing and Product Development with MLC Corporate Solutions
and Senior Audit Manager with KPMG.
Julie was on the Board of Metropolitan Fire and Emergency Services
Board from 2001 to 2007 and President and Chair from 2005 to
2007, she also chaired the Audit Committee. During her time as Chair
she played a leading role in the recruitment of a new CEO and driving
a cultural change agenda that transformed the organisation.
Julie is a graduate of Leadership Victoria (formerly Williamson
Communityy Leadership program).
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Committees: Member of State Trustees Australia Foundation Advisory
Committee and the Business Transformation, Compliance and
Investment Committees. Attends Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee by invitation.
Experience: Over the last 35 years, Anthony Fitzgerald has gained
extensive financial services experience from a number of senior roles
in the National Australia Bank (NAB) Group, both in Australia and
overseas. These include Strategy Adviser, Global Business Financial
Services, and Head of Business Marketing, and Business Financial
Services Australia. His experience in the NAB Group covered the areas
of strategy, marketing, organisational planning, credit analysis, sales,
and customer and outlet management.
Anthony was the National President of the Trustee Companies
Association from 2007 until 2011.
Anthony joined State Trustees in 2002 as General Manager Estate
Planning Solutions looking after Estate Management, Wills,
Attorneyships, and Trusts and has been Managing Director
since September 2003.
Anthony holds a Bachelor of Business Accounting from
the Queensland University of Technology, and is a CPA.

Patrick Burroughs, BSSc (Hons), FCA, FAICD, SA Fin

Lindsay Smith, MBA, MAICD

Appointed: 1 May 2008 [Non-Executive]

Appointed: 1 March 2012 [Non-Executive]

Committees: Chairman of the Audit Committee and Member
of the Business Transformation and Remuneration Committees.

Committees: Chairman of the State Trustees Australia Foundation
Advisory Committee and Member of the Audit Committee.

Experience: Patrick is a Chartered Accountant with extensive
experience in a range of industries including the financial services,
building and construction, manufacturing and Government (health,
treasury and finance) sectors.

Experience: Lindsay has extensive experience in sales, marketing
and distribution from his 20 year involvement in the privately owned
company PFD Food Services and various food manufacturing and
building products businesses.

Patrick is currently a Director of Queen Victoria Market Pty Ltd and
The Skin and Cancer Foundation Inc. During the year he has retired
as a Director of The Royal Children’s Hospital, and as a Director of
PFS Nominees Pty Ltd, MLC Nominees Pty Ltd and NULIS Nominees
(Australia) Limited, all corporate trustees of large public oﬀer
superannuation funds administered by MLC Ltd, a subsidiary of
National Australia Bank Limited.

Throughout his career with PFD Food Services he has held various
senior management and executive director positions. PFD Food
Services are a leading broad line food service business and operate
65 distribution centres nationally including a significant presence
across regional Australia.

Dino Georgiou, LLB (Hons), BCom
Appointed: 14 December 2011 [Non-Executive]
Committees: Member of the Investment and Compliance
Committees.
Experience: Dino has over 15 years’ experience in the legal,
government and telecommunications sectors. Dino works with
Telstra and has held senior roles in Telstra’s commercial, regulatory
and marketing groups with a focus on large transactions,
regulatory negotiations and strategy.
A former corporate lawyer specialising in banking and finance
and commercial, Dino has also served in Senior Adviser positions
for Federal Ministers of Finance, with responsibility for oversight
of Commonwealth Government Business Enterprises and the
Minister for Defence on acquisitions and procurement, major
projects and industry.
Dino holds degrees in Law and Commerce from the
University of Melbourne.
Dr Irene Irvine, PhD Chem, BSc (Hons), DipEd, GradDip
(Admin), FRACI, GAICD, AFAIM
Appointed: 1 July 2004 [Non-Executive]
Committees: Chair of the Compliance Committee and
Member of the Audit Committee.

He is a Director of PFD Food Services Pty Ltd and related wholly owned
entities. He is also Chairman of Dingo Cement Australia, a Director
of 7 Chefs Pty Ltd and P&V Forrest Investments Pty Ltd.
Lindsay holds a Master of Business Administration from
Swinburne University of Technology.
Robert (Bobby) Guttmann, BSC (Hons), CISA
Appointed: 1 July 2010 [Non-Executive]
Committees: Member of the Investment and Remuneration
Committees.
Experience: Bobby has over 25 years experience in the IT industry
in a variety of specialist roles including IT auditor, Architect, Analyst,
and Performance tuner. He has helped organisations find smarter,
more eﬃcient ways to manage and get more out of their IT functions
through the eﬀective use of IT Software and process frameworks.
Bobby has provided consulting services to a variety of clients both
in Australia and internationally, mainly in the telecommunications
and energy sectors. Bobby has authored and presented papers at
a number of Australian and international conferences on a variety
of topics, including Performance tuning, Database Design,
IT Security, and IT Governance.
Bobby also runs his own software based Mind Modelling consultancy.
In addition, Bobby is involved in various community organisations
and is currently a Board member of Beit Aharon synagogue.

Experience: Irene is an experienced Director and runs her
own management consulting practice. She has held a range of
senior positions in business development, fundraising and strategic
marketing in both the public and private sectors (including disability
services). Irene is a graduate of Leadership Victoria (formerly
Williamson Community Leadership Program) and devotes much
of her time to not-for-profit or charity activities. She is currently
Chair of the Phillip Island Nature Park Board of Management Inc.,
a past Deputy Chair of the Zoological Board of Victoria and a
Director of Australia’s Open Garden Scheme and Karringal.
Director’s Report

35

Joshua (Josh) Bornstein, BA, LLB (Hons)
Appointed: 1 July 2010 [Non-Executive]
Ceased: 30 March 2012
Annette Broadfoot, MBA, BBus (Acc)
Appointed: 1 December 2008 [Non-Executive]
Ceased: 30 November 2011
Paula Allen, CFA, FCA
Appointed: 1 December 2008 [Non-Executive]
Ceased: 30 November 2011
2. DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS
Director

Board
Meeting
A

H

Audit
Committee
(b)
A H

Compliance
Committee
(c)
A H

Remuneration
Committee
(a)
A H

STAF† Advisory
Committee
(g) (h)
A H

Business
Transformation
Committee (a)
A H

Julie Elliott

10 10

4

3

4

4

4

2

(f) (f)

2

2

Anthony Fitzgerald

10 10

4(e) 4(e)

4

4

4

4

2(e) 2(e)

2

2

2

Patrick Burroughs(b)

10 10

4

(f) (f)

(f) (f)

2

(f) (f)

2

2

Dino Georgiou

6

(f) (f)

2

2

2

(f) (f)

(f) (f)

(f) (f)

Dr Irene Irvine(c)

10 10

4

4

4

4

(f) (f)

(f) (f)

1

1

(f) (f)

Lindsay Smith

4

1

1

(f) (f)

(f) (f)

(f) (f)

1

1

(f) (f)

Bobby Guttmann

10 10

2(i) 2(i)

4

2

2

(f) (f)

1

(a)

(h)

6

4

4

4

(f) (f)

2

4

2

2

2

(f) (f)

Josh Bornstein

5

5

(f) (f)

2

3

(f) (f)

1

(f) (f)

(f) (f)

Paula Allen(d)

4

4

(f) (f)

2

2

1

(f) (f)

(f) (f)

(f) (f)

Annette Broadfoot(g)

4

4

1

(f) (f)

(f) (f)

(f) (f)

(f) (f)

1

1

(f) (f)

A Number of meetings attended.

(f) Director is not a member of this Committee.

H Number of meetings held during the time the Director held oﬃce exclusive
of leave of absence.

(g) Annette Broadfoot was Chairman of the STAF Advisory Committee.

(a) Julie Elliott is Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and Acting Chairman of the Investment Committee.

(i) Robert Guttmann attended 2 meetings of the Compliance Committee
as an observer.

(b) Patrick Burroughs is Chairman of the Audit Committee.

† STAF stands for State Trustees Australia Foundation.

(c) Irene Irvine is Chairman of the Compliance Committee.

* In addition all Directors attended other meetings with Management in the discharge
of their duties. All Directors (except one) attended the two strategy days/sessions
held in November 2011 and March 2012. That one Director attended the November
2011 strategy session.

(d) Paula Allen was Chairman of the Investment Committee.
(e) Tony Fitzgerald attends the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
meetings by invitation.
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(h) Lindsay Smith is Chairman of the STAF Advisory Committee.

3. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
State Trustees Limited’s principal activities during the year were as
trustee, executor, administrator, attorney and provider of other fiduciary
and agency services.
4. DIVIDEND
The shareholder has agreed to a three year dividend holiday commencing
2009-10 remaining in place until the end of the 2011-12 financial year.
This dividend holiday is being used to help facilitate the future funding
requirements of the STL 2020 investment program.
5. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
The current reporting period has seen many achievements and challenges,
and we have continued on our strategic journey of being more relevant,
accessible and valued in the hearts and minds of Victorians.
The Bendigo Oﬃce opened for business on Monday 16 July 2012. After
twelve months of well executed planning the oﬃce opened on schedule.
The completion of the building and fitout was complemented by trained
staﬀ and fully operational computerised systems. The opening day was
full of activity and learning with the team at Bendigo - a mix of our
existing employees who have relocated and our new employees recruited
from Bendigo and surrounding areas. The opening day provided a chance
for everyone to meet their new workmates and other colleagues from
Melbourne, including Anthony Fitzgerald and the Corporate Leadership
Team. The team was joined by the Mayor of the City of Greater Bendigo
Councillor Alec Sandner.
There has been a significant focus on the Business Transformation
Program (BTP) over the past twelve months and it will continue to be
the major project shaping the future of State Trustees Limited for the
next two years. The core program outcomes are to ensure the
ongoing sustainability of State Trustees Limited by:
• Clearer focus on delivering value to our clients
• Clear, well understood service standards (consistent service at a fair price)
• Reducing cost to serve
• Increasing revenue.
Our current business model is unsustainable therefore we must make
changes. Even without the financial imperatives of our change program,
we know we must make improvements to the way we work, and the way
we provide services to clients. Our clients are telling us, external agencies
are telling us and we know it ourselves. Therefore we will concentrate on
delivering clear service promises to our clients that do not over or
underdeliver. This will mean that we provide the right service - seamless,
responsive and timely. January 2012 saw the introduction of the first
phase of the project with the commencement of a new Corporate
Structure and Operating Model.

State Trustees External Financial Planning business was sold to
Fiducian Financial Services Pty Ltd (Fiducian) on 1 January 2012, after
a comprehensive selection process. Fiducian is a subsidiary of Fiducian
Portfolio Services Limited and part of the Fiducian Group. Fiducian
Portfolio Services Limited is a public company listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange (ASX). Fiducian was selected because its products,
values and high service standards are aligned with those of State Trustees
Limited. Fiducian underwent a handover phase which was completed on
31 January 2012. The two companies have entered into a two-way
referral agreement.
With regard to some of the challenges that have occurred it should be
noted that the domestic and international equity markets moved in a
downward direction during the financial year. The market value of the
inveST Australian Equity Fund decreased by over 7 percent in the past
twelve months. This has had a negative impact on our investment returns
although this was mitigated by mandating a 75/25 defensive/growth
asset allocation during the majority of the year. From May 2012, in
anticipation of a change in regulatory requirements (ASIC) and
considering our future capital requirements we changed the mandate
to a 85/15 defensive/growth asset mix.
The profit before tax was $720k (2011: $572k) and whilst this is a 25.9%
increase on last year it is higher ($523k) than budget. The profit after
tax was $120k (2011: $464k) and is slightly behind budget ($18k). This
variance in performance in before and after tax profit can largely be
explained by a correction to our deferred tax provisions for the potential
capital gains tax in relation to the revaluation of land and buildings. In
addition, we have seen further adjustments (net increase) to the valuation
of our Land and Buildings, which has increased the Asset Revaluation
Reserve (Equity) by $1,630k (2011: $1,093k). The upward valuation was
in connection to the base building (pre capital gains tax asset) of our
premises located at 168 Exhibition Street, as opposed to last year
where it had an increase in land value.
We achieved overall revenue growth of 2.89% (2011 5.55%) Commissions
and fees have seen an increase of 4.32% (2011: 6.79%) due to larger client
volumes in some areas and more complex services required elsewhere.
The Community Services Agreement has been rolled over for a further
year while we continue to negotiate future funding arrangements.
We continue to invest in our business, through a launch of new
technology (EDRMS), client servicing facilities (Bendigo site has been
developed and opened on 16 July 2012) and a continued increase
in marketing activities. The future will continue to see change at
State Trustees Limited and we have the vision and strategies in
place to meet the challenges.
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6. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS
There were no significant changes in the company’s state of aﬀairs other
than those referred to in the financial statements or attached notes.
During the financial year, the company disposed of the External Financial
Planning business to Fiducian Financial Services Pty Ltd for consideration
of $393,000.
The financial result of the External Financial Planning business is
immaterial in nature and as such has not been separately disclosed.
7. MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
There are no circumstances which have arisen since 30 June 2012
not otherwise dealt with in this report that have significantly aﬀected
or may significantly aﬀect the operations of the company, the results
of those operations or the state of aﬀairs of the company in
subsequent financial years.
8. LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND FUTURE RESULTS
The directors advise that there are no likely developments in the
company’s operations or expected results in future financial years
to report other than what is reported in this report.

9. INSURANCE
During the financial year, State Trustees Limited paid a premium under
a contract insuring specified oﬃcers against liability incurred in their
capacity of working on the company’s behalf. Those oﬃcers consist of
the Directors of the Company named earlier in this report, the Company
Secretaries, and other Oﬃcers of the Company including certain Oﬃcers
whose functions include exercising executive decision making powers
of the company and its related bodies corporate.
Disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of premium is
prohibited by the confidentiality clause of the contract of insurance.
The Company has not provided any insurance for an auditor of the
Company or related body corporate.
10. RESERVE FUND
State Trustees Limited has complied with the provisions of the Trustee
Companies Act 1984 that requires a reserve fund to be created and set
aside by authorised trustee companies. This is reflected in the financial
statements at Note 8.
11. AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
A copy of the auditors’ independence declaration, as required under
section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, is set out on page 39.
12. ROUNDING AMOUNTS
The amounts contained within this report and the financial report have
been rounded to the nearest $1,000 (where rounding is applicable)
under the option available to the company under ASIC CO 98/0100.
The Company is an entity to which the Class Order applies.
This report is signed in accordance with a resolution
of the Board of Directors.

Julie A Elliott Chairman of Directors

Anthony G Fitzgerald Managing Director
Melbourne, 21 August 2012
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Victorian Government Risk
Management Framework Attestation

Auditor-General’s
independence declaration
To the Directors, State Trustees Limited

In the context of the Victorian Government Risk Management Framework
and State Trustees’ observance of the framework, I, Julie Ann Elliott certify
that State Trustees Limited has risk management processes in place
consistent with the Australian/New Zealand Risk Management Standard
(or equivalent designated standard) and an internal control system is in
place that is intended to enable the executive to understand, manage
and satisfactorily control material risk exposures. The Board verifies
this assurance and that the risk profile of State Trustees Limited has
been critically reviewed within the last 12 months.

The Auditor-General’s independence is established by the Constitution
Act 1975. The Auditor General, an independent oﬃcer of parliament, is
not subject to direction by any person about the way in which his powers
and responsibilities are to be exercised.
Under the Audit Act 1994, the Auditor-General is the auditor of each
public body and for the purposes of conducting an audit has access
to all documents and property, and may report to parliament any
matters which the Auditor-General considers appropriate

Julie A Elliott
Chairman of Directors

Independence Declaration
As auditor for State Trustees Limited for the year ended 30 June 2012,
I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:
a) no contraventions of auditor independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit
b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct
in relation to the audit.

D.D.R. Pearson Auditor-General
Melbourne 23 August 2012
Level 24, 35 Collins Street, Melbourne Vic. 3000
Telephone 61 3 8601 7000 • Facsimile 61 3 8601 7010
Email comments@audit.vic.gov.au • Website www.audit.vic.gov.au
Auditing in the Public Interest

Auditors’ Independence Declaration
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Corporate Governance Statement
State Trustees is committed to achieving
and demonstrating the highest standards
of corporate governance.
Our core governance practices are consistent with
the Victorian Government’s ‘Good practice guide
on governance for Victorian public sector entities’.
For ease of reporting, we have addressed our
governance practices through five key corporate
public sector governance principles. Unless
otherwise stated, these practices have been
in place for the full financial year.
This corporate governance statement sets out
information about our enabling legislation.

1. ACCOUNTABILITY
1.1 Corporate structure
State Trustees, under its enabling legislation of the State Trustees (State
Owned Company) Act 1994 (Vic), reports to the Government of Victoria, and
comes under the Department of Treasury and Finance. The State of Victoria
is our sole shareholder. We have a Board of Directors, whose members are
appointed by the Victorian Treasurer on behalf of the State of Victoria.
1.2 Communication with shareholder
Through the Board of Directors, State Trustees reports to the Treasurer
as the State of Victoria’s representative. This communication includes:
• quarterly reporting on financial performance, any significant variations
from the Corporate Plan, business risks, and general business issues;
• responding to questions arising from the quarterly reporting either as ad
hoc reports or in direct meetings with the Treasurer or his representatives;
• financial statements, Directors’ reports, and the auditor’s reports
as required by the Corporations Act 2001 (C’wealth);
• any reports requested by the Auditor-General or Ombudsman; and
• responses to questions from Members of Parliament.
1.3 Executive reporting lines

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

State of Victoria

(Shareholder) Overseen by the
Department of Treasury and Finance

State Trustees Limited
Board of Directors
Managing Director
Corporate Leadership Team
Senior Leadership Team

Managing Director, Anthony Fitzgerald, leads State Trustees. During the
reporting period he had five general managers as direct reports. This group,
known as the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) meets formally each week,
but meets informally more often as required.
1.4 Performance to plan
State Trustees based its financial year operations on its ‘Corporate Strategy
2011-2013’.
We centre our key corporate performance indicators on two components:
client feedback and financial performance.
Client feedback
Each year State Trustees gathers client feedback across our retail services
and Personal Financial Administration division via the Client Value Index
(CVI) survey. In 2012, we spoke to 1560 clients about their experience with
State Trustees, and our performance against expectations.
Retail Services
At the core of the Retail Services Client Value Index (CVI) survey is a
composite score which measures client preference for State Trustees
over competitors, willingness to buy more of our services, and likelihood
of recommending State Trustees to others.
The 2012 State Trustees Retail Services CVI score was 68%, marginally
lower than 2011 (70%). Eight in ten clients said they would not hesitate
in recommending State Trustees to others.
Personal Financial Administration Services
The Client Value Index (CVI) score for clients whose financial and legal
aﬀairs we administer under a VCAT order, is again a composite score which
measures the perception that State Trustees acts in the best interests of
clients, and willingness to recommend State Trustees to others.
In 2012 the State Trustees Personal Financial Administration Services
CVI score continued to be strong, increasing to 81% (from 75% in 2011).
Over 80% of respondents agree that our Personal Financial Administration
teams are friendly and professional, treating clients fairly and respectfully.
Financial performance
State Trustees’ budgeted profit before tax for the financial year was
$197,000. The financial year’s actual performance was $720,000.
We budgeted for a $64.0 million financial year turnover, achieving an
actual financial year turnover of $63.3 million.
At the close of the financial year, our total assets under management
and trusteeship were approximately $1.93 billion.
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1.5 Conflict of interest

Our strategic plan for the 2011 to 2012 financial year is:

Directors must keep the Board advised, on an ongoing basis, of any interests
that might potentially conflict with those of the Company. Directors are
guided in this area by Board-developed procedures on disclosing potential
conflicts of interest.

Growth – Our growth strategy focuses on increasing revenue, client volume
and market share across our core and client generating businesses.

Where the Board believes a significant conflict exists for a Director on a
Board matter, the Director concerned does not receive the relevant Board
papers and is not present at the meeting while the item is considered.
2. TRANSPARENCY AND OPENNESS
2.1 Legislation establishing the entity

Client advocacy and community engagement – Our strategy focuses
on aligning our corporate activities and corporate messages in a way
that demonstrates our active support to our clients.
Financial sustainability – Eﬀectively and eﬃciently managing the resources
within the organisation, delivering productivity improvements and assessing
and managing risks in a changing environment.
People – Supporting the enablement of change in the 2011-2012
planning period.

State Trustees Limited was established in July 1994 as a result of the
State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act. The State Trust Corporation
of Victoria was its predecessor. The stage was set for State Trustees
to become Victoria’s first State-owned company with the 1992 State
Owned Enterprises Act.

Service excellence – Above all else, success under the Service Excellence
strategic theme will be the demonstration that changes to our operations
truly deliver on the brand promise of “Your interests at heart”.

State Trustees was the first company that was wholly-owned by the State
of Victoria, and is a company under the Corporations Act and a trustee
company under the Trustee Companies Act 1984 (Vic).

State Trustees’ governance structure is driven by two pieces of legislation:
the State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act and the Corporations Act.

Although Federal legislation to regulate licensed trustee companies was
enacted in 2009/10, State Trustees is exempt because the State of Victoria
decided not to request that State Trustees be licensed. State Trustees
remains regulated under Victorian law.
2.2 Goals and strategies
State Trustees is committed to helping Victorians make the most of their
financial opportunities. In particular, we look after the finances and estates
of represented persons. The Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal
(VCAT) appoints State Trustees via an administration order to manage
the financial and legal aﬀairs of these persons.
Under the State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act, the Minister is
responsible for ensuring that services relating to managing and
administering estates and property are provided to clients who do not have
the resources to obtain those services. The Minister does this by entering
into a contract with State Trustees, the Community Services Agreement
(CSA), to provide these services.
The CSA only applies to those who do not have the financial capacity
to pay for such services. The Government pays State Trustees to provide
these unprofitable services conditional on achieving certain performance
standards as stipulated in the CSA.
In addition, we provide numerous services on a commercial basis to clients
who appoint us to manage their financial and legal aﬀairs. These services
include Estate Planning, Executor Services, Enduring Powers of Attorney,
Will writing, Tax and Legal Services, and Genealogy.
Since emerging as a State-owned company in 1994, we’ve continually
improved our customer services and accountabilities while striving for
commercial success in the trustee-services industry.
Our three year Corporate Strategy sets out our key result areas and
strategic objectives to be achieved over the 2011 to 2013 period.
The 2011 to 2013 Corporate Strategy is an evolution of our previous
strategy with each of our key themes combined to form the building
blocks for the future.
At the apex of our Corporate Strategy for the next three years is financial
sustainability. Our financial sustainability strategy is a long-term initiative
requiring the whole business to input into the activities that will drive
sustainable growth.
Engagement with our clients and the community is essential for financial
sustainability. We will look to advocate on key issues that impact our clients
and the community and ensure key messages aligned to these issues are
consistently incorporated into all of our corporate communications.

2.3 Governance structure

State Trustees is the State of Victoria’s first corporatised public sector entity.
Its creation followed microeconomic reforms at the State and Federal level
in the 1980s, which saw the push towards Government entities becoming
commercialised, corporatised, or privatised.
Although we are a profit-oriented Government Business Enterprise (GBE),
we are also driven by the accountabilities of private sector organisations.
Accordingly, our governance is influenced by both private company and
public entity principles.
For the sake of reporting our governance, we have opted for the public
sector entity approach rather than, for instance, the Australian Stock
Exchange Corporate Governance Principles.
2.4 Competitive neutrality
State Trustees is a public financial enterprise within the meaning of the
Competitive Neutrality Policy Victoria 2000 prepared by the Department of
Treasury and Finance. State Trustees operates under a corporatised model,
and pays the full suite of Commonwealth and State taxes or tax equivalents.
2.5 Remuneration policies
Principles used to determine remuneration
State Trustees bases its executive remuneration packages on the principle
of reward for performance. Our remuneration framework, from the
Government Sector Executive Remuneration Panel (GSERP), aims to align
executive reward with achieving strategic objectives and creating value
for our shareholder.
Our executive oﬃcers’ pay and reward framework has two key components:
• Base remuneration is structured as a total employment cost package,
and can be delivered as a mix of cash, superannuation, and prescribed
non financial benefits at the executives’ discretion.
Executives are oﬀered a base pay comprising the fixed component of
pay and rewards, which is no more than 80 per cent of the Managing
Director’s base salary (as determined by GSERP).
External remuneration consultants provide advice on whether our
executives’ base pay reflects the financial services market for a
comparable role. The Remuneration Committee reviews senior executives’
base pay annually to compare competitiveness with the financial services
market. There are no guaranteed base pay increases fixed in any senior
executives’ contracts.
• Short-term incentives are available to each executive depending on
the role’s accountabilities and impact on organisational and business
unit performance. Senior executives can receive a bonus of up to
20 per cent of total base remuneration, which the Remuneration
Committee approves.
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3. INTEGRITY

3.4 Whistleblowers’ protection

Relevant legislation and accounting standards guide State Trustees’
financial reporting.

State Trustees is committed to the aims and objectives of the
Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 (Vic). We don’t tolerate our staﬀ
at any level acting improperly at any time, nor do we take reprisals
against those who come forward to disclose improper conduct.

While we have only one shareholder, the State of Victoria, we have
numerous stakeholders who are interested in our ethics and performance.

We recognise the value of transparency and accountability
in how we do business.

Key to all our activities is the safety and security of our funds under trust
for both represented persons and the broader public.

We support staﬀ disclosing conduct that is corrupt, involves substantial
mismanagement of public resources, or substantial risk to public health
and safety or the environment.

3.1 Reporting quality

We inform stakeholders of our eﬀectiveness in achieving these goals
through our Annual Report, which we produce in hard copy, and make
available online at www.statetrustees.com.au.
Our staﬀ, who are influential stakeholders in providing services to our
clients, are continually updated on our performance. Staﬀ attend
quarterly presentations given by the Managing Director and can follow
these up on the company intranet. We update our clients with a number
of specifically-targeted quarterly newsletters that outline our activities.
3.2 Audit Committee
State Trustees has a formal Audit Committee comprising non-executive
Directors. At its discretion, the Audit Committee invites our internal
and external auditors, the Managing Director, General Manager
Corporate Operations, and Chief Financial Oﬃcer to Committee
meetings. Section 5.2 of this Corporate Governance Report
gives further details of this Committee.
3.3 Code of Conduct
State Trustees is committed to operating ethically. We have a Code of
Conduct, our public statement of how we conduct our business and treat
clients and staﬀ, and use it to communicate how we expect staﬀ to act
with honesty and integrity at all times.
Our Code of Conduct contains specific clauses relating to confidentiality,
email and information technology, conflict of interest, and personal
behaviour. It expressly addresses dealing with breaches and noncompliance with the Code.
Confidentiality
We expect staﬀ to maintain and respect the confidentiality and privacy
of clients’ personal and financial information. Staﬀ must not use or
disclose any confidential information for any unauthorised purpose,
including for personal use or to benefit a third party. An essential part of
all staﬀ employment arrangements is adherence to our Code of Conduct.
When dealing with represented persons’ aﬀairs, we refer staﬀ to the
secrecy obligations set out in section 17 of the State Trustees (State
Owned Company) Act, and remind them that we are subject to other
privacy obligations that may include the Privacy Act 1988 (C’wealth),
Information Privacy Act 2000 (Vic) and Health Records Act 2001 (Vic)
depending on the circumstances.
Conflict of interest
Our Code of Conduct draws attention to conflict of interest. We advocate
acting with honesty and integrity in all aspects of our business. In keeping
with this value, we require staﬀ to take care to avoid actual or apparent
conflicts of interest between their private aﬀairs and our business. We
define conflicts of interest as situations where a staﬀ member has a
personal interest that may influence (or even appear to influence) the
way they perform their oﬃcial duties.
We regularly revise our Code of Conduct. All new employees receive a
copy during their induction training. It is also available on our intranet,
and we require staﬀ to confirm electronically that they have read and
understood it. At that time, we also give staﬀ the opportunity to ask
questions in relation to any aspect of the Code they don’t understand.

We take all reasonable steps to protect staﬀ who make such disclosures
from any detrimental action relating to that disclosure. We also provide
natural justice to the person who is the subject of the disclosure.
Compliance with the Whistleblowers Protection Act
State Trustees encourages staﬀ to report known or suspected incidences
of improper conduct or detrimental actions. We have procedures to
protect from reprisals a person who makes a disclosure and to properly
investigate and deal with any disclosures.
Our procedures include disclosure mechanisms, and confidentiality
provisions that guide the roles and responsibilities of designated
protected disclosure co-ordinators, protected disclosure oﬃcers,
investigators, and welfare managers. We regularly remind staﬀ
of the Whistleblowers’ legislation and procedures.
There were two complaints made under the Whistleblowers
Protection Act 2001. Both complaints were investigated and
found to be unsubstantiated.
State Trustees Whistleblowers’ contacts
State Trustees staﬀ can disclose possible improper conduct or
detrimental action to our protected disclosure co-ordinator, Client
Relations Manager, Anthony Hughes, who is available on (03) 9667 6200.
They can also contact our protected disclosure oﬃcers Michelle Johnston,
Manager, People and Culture on (03) 9667 6162 and John Dennison,
Manager, Compliance and Risk Management on (03) 9667 6459.
We will refer all correspondence, phone calls, and emails from internal
or external whistleblowers to the protected disclosure co-ordinator. If
a person contemplating making a disclosure feels uncomfortable doing
so on State Trustees premises, they can request a meeting in a discreet
location away from the workplace.
3.5 Environmental activities
State Trustees is not subject to any significant environmental regulations.
However, we are committed to achieving a high standard of
environmentally friendly performance. We have a number of initiatives
that aim to reduce our environmental impact. These include:
• maintaining a paper and waste recycling program,
• using low energy/high light output fittings,
• saving water by implementing dual-flush cisterns,
• undertaking a cartridge recycling program for all printer
and photocopier toners,
• using laser printers and multi-function printer/copiers with
energy saving features,
• deploying secure “no-waste” security card laser printers
whereby print jobs are only printed at time of collection, reducing
paper usage significantly and almost completely eliminating
wasted printing,
• disposing of light tubes via the EPA waste management system,
• having our motor vehicle fleet comprising 30% hybrid vehicles, and
• all personal computers having in-house developed auto-oﬀ
energy saving control software.
The Board is not aware of any breaches of its environmental
practices during the period covered by this report.
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4. STEWARDSHIP
4.1 State Trustees’ main functions
State Trustees’ main functions, established under the State Trustees
(State Owned Company) Act are to provide:
• trustee services for government and individuals;
• personal administration services;
• specialised legal, financial and tax services including Will writing,
establishing Powers of Attorney, Financial Planning, managing
compensation funds, Genealogy Services, and Trust Administration; and
• funds management services and investment products.
4.2 Stewardship activities
Providing personal administration services, specifically to represented
persons, is a core element of our business. In these cases, VCAT’s
Guardianship List has appointed State Trustees as administrator of
the aﬀairs of people who are deemed unable to make reasonable
judgements in respect of their estate.
VCAT’s Guardianship List started in July 1998, replacing the former
Guardianship and Administration Board. The Tribunal and the Oﬃce
of the Public Advocate both play a crucial role in determining whether
a person needs an administrator.
Any person may apply to VCAT seeking the appointment of an
administrator. They may nominate a person such as a family member,
friend, accountant, solicitor, State Trustees, or a private trustee company
who they consider could undertake the role. The Public Advocate may
also apply to the Tribunal to appoint a guardian or administrator, or to
review appointment arrangements.
In cases where the applicant doesn’t nominate an administrator, or VCAT
considers the nominee unsuitable, for example, where there is significant
family conflict, VCAT may appoint State Trustees or another suitable
administrator.
Subject to the Guardianship and Administration Act 1986 (Vic) and
the administration order, an administrator:

Represented persons
Age and circumstances of represented persons vary significantly.
About 37 per cent are older than 60, around 53 per cent are between
31 and 60 years, and the remaining 10 per cent are 30 years and under.
All have some form of disability such as intellectual impairment,
a mental disorder, brain injury, or dementia that impact on their ability
to make reasonable decisions.
As a State-owned company, State Trustees must perform its functions
for public benefit by:
• operating its business as eﬃciently as possible consistent with
prudent commercial practice; and
• maximising its contribution to the economy and the State’s well being.
In adopting a commercial practice, a company would not normally accept
administrator appointments in circumstances where it would incur a loss.
Losses could occur by undertaking unprofitable activities designed to
meet community and social objectives.
Community Services Agreement
Agreements have been in place between State Trustees and the Minister
responsible for the Department of Human Services since July 1994, and
cover services to a range of State Trustees’ clients.
We deliver these services under legislation that includes the
State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act, Administration and
Probate Act 1958 (Vic), Trustee Act 1958 (Vic), and Guardianship and
Administration Act. In part, these ensure that members of the public
have access to services relating to managing and administering their
estates and property.
In 2011/12, State Trustees received income of $15.36 million
under the agreement.
Service improvements
Over the past decade or so, we have implemented numerous
improvements to client services. These include:
• increasing client accessibility by establishing a dedicated customer
service centre in Melbourne’s CBD;

• is responsible for managing the represented person’s estate;

• appointing a client relations team and establishing a coordinated
client contact program throughout Victoria;

• takes possession and care of, recovers, collects, preserves, and
administers the property and estate, and generally manages the
represented person’s financial and legal aﬀairs; and

• establishing an oﬃce at VCAT to provide immediate access to
services for our clients, VCAT applicants, and Tribunal members;

• exercises all rights relating to the estate that the represented person
might exercise if she/he had legal capacity.

• creating a property facilitator team charged with providing immediate
response to urgent property issues such as securing homes, motor
vehicles, and other valuables including pets;

In exercising such wide powers, the legislation requires administrators to
act in the represented person’s best interests. As administrator, we take
into account the represented person’s wishes and try to encourage and
help them become capable of administering their own estate.

• enhancing client communication by providing regular service
information to clients and the broader community;

Functions of an administrator
Typically, an administrator performs the following functions on behalf
of a represented person:

• regularly meeting key stakeholders and advocacy groups to allow
them to raise concerns and give input into service delivery initiatives.
These meetings also provide an opportunity for us to explain our
administration role, responsibilities, and obligations;

• prepares and periodically reviews their financial plan and budget;
• manages real estate and other assets;
• collects income including ensuring they receive all of their entitlements;
• manages liabilities and pays accounts as they fall due;
• attends to taxation matters;
• helps them accumulate savings to enable them achieve their
aspirations;
• invests available funds; and

• appointing a client relations oﬃcer to deal formally with any
complaints received;

• developing new information systems to improve service delivery
eﬃciency, particularly in managing clients’ financial aﬀairs and
file management;
• developing specialist teams to focus on particular client needs. For
example we have a pensions team to verify entitlements, a quality
review team to assess the quality of work provided for clients, and
an intensive needs team especially for clients with particular needs;

• manages legal and associated issues.

• establishing the Financial Independence Program and Intensive
Support Program; and

State Trustees currently administers over 9,200 represented persons,
managing their assets in excess of $800 million.

• opening a service centre in Dandenong and a new regional oﬃce
in Bendigo to better meet the needs of clients.
We take seriously our stewardship of our clients’ aﬀairs, and of being
responsible for making these services available. We choose our
consultants carefully to ensure they are empathetic to clients’ needs;
we provide these services fairly, sensitively, and confidentially.
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4.3 Compliance and risk management

The Board seeks to ensure that:

Risk management
The Board oversees State Trustees’ risk management and compliance
framework. We have a management framework for assessing,
monitoring, and managing operational activities, financial
reporting, and compliance risks.

• at any point in time, its membership represents an appropriate
balance between Directors with experience and knowledge of the
Company, and Directors with an external or fresh perspective; and

Our risk management framework is structured and transparent. Built on the
Risk Management Standard AS/NZS 31000:2009, it allows us to identify,
assess, and manage risk across the company systematically and consistently.
The framework also defines reporting processes to manage exposures at
an appropriate level across the organisation.
The Managing Director and key senior managers make up the Risk
Committee of Management, which is responsible for supporting the Board
in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities relating to identifying, assessing,
and managing risk, and adhering to internal risk management policies
and procedures. In this role, the committee has delegated authority
from the Board to approve and oversee risk management processes.
Working with the executive and senior management, the compliance
and risk management team helps management mitigate risks by
identifying business risks and controls. The team also monitors and
regularly reports to both the Board and management on the status
of risk across the organisation.
All staﬀ are trained to understand their compliance responsibilities and
the processes and policies for reporting and rectifying breaches.
Compliance and control
State Trustees is committed to meeting strong compliance and ethical
standards. Our Compliance Policy guides us in meeting our ongoing and
continuously changing compliance requirements and obligations.
The policy, which overarches our annual Organisational Compliance
Plan, reflects the Company’s commitment to compliance. We developed
this policy to meet the standards in Australian Standard
AS3806 – Compliance Programs.
To help us more eﬀectively manage our financial services compliance
responsibilities, we have a management committee titled the Australian
Financial Services (AFS) Licence Committee. This committee reviews
and monitors ongoing compliance with AFS licence obligations.
Its key responsibilities include:
• reviewing key risks to compliance with AFS licence obligations,
• resolving AFS licence issues and informing the Managing Director
of risk discussions and outcomes, and
• assessing materiality of compliance breaches and recommending
remedial action according to our Breaches Policy and Procedures.
Fraud control
State Trustees has a number of management systems, process controls,
and procedures directed at preventing or minimising the risk of fraud.
The Risk Committee of Management oversees and reviews any investigation,
then reports its findings and recommendations to the Managing Director.
All instances of fraud must be reported to State Trustees’ Audit Committee.
Business continuity planning
State Trustees has a Business Continuity Plan which is a framework
designed to ensure that critical processes continue if a serious unplanned
event occurs that may disrupt the business.
5. LEADERSHIP
5.1 Board of Directors
Board composition
The organisation’s sole shareholder is the State of Victoria. It is represented
by the Treasurer who selects the State Trustees’ Board.
Details of the Board members, their experience, expertise, qualifications,
terms of oﬃce, and independent status are set out in the Board of Directors
section of the Directors’ Report.
There are seven non-executive directors and one executive director
at the date of signing the Directors’ Report.
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• the Board’s size is conducive to eﬀective discussion and eﬃcient
decision-making.
The Board’s guiding principles
The Board operates according to the broad principles set out in its charter,
which details the Board’s role, composition, and responsibilities. These are
additional to the Company’s Constitution. The Company Secretary reviews
the Board of Directors’ Charter at least annually and the Board receives
recommended changes for its approval. The Company Secretary and the
management representative responsible for preparing the relevant
committee’s papers review each committee’s charter at least annually.
Any recommended changes to committee charters are submitted to the
respective committees, and any changes that are approved are then
submitted to the Board for its approval.
Chairman and Managing Director
The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board, ensuring Directors
are properly briefed in all matters relevant to their role and responsibilities,
facilitating Board discussions, and managing the Board’s relationship
with the Company’s senior executives.
The Managing Director is responsible for implementing group
strategies and policies.
The Board Charter specifies that the roles of Chairman and Managing
Director are not to be held by the same person.
The Board’s role
The Board’s role is to provide strategic guidance to the Company within
a framework of prudent and eﬀective controls that enables risk to be
assessed and managed. The Board:
• sets the Company’s strategic aims;
• ensures that the necessary financial and human resources are
in place for the Company to meet its objectives;
• reviews management performance;
• sets the Company’s values and standards; and
• ensures that the Company understands and meets its obligations
to stakeholders.
The Board has delegated responsibility for operating and administering
State Trustees to the Managing Director, the Corporate Leadership
Team, and senior management. Responsibilities are delineated by
formal authority delegations.
Independent professional advice and access to company information
Each Director has the right to access all relevant State Trustees’ executives
and information and, subject to prior consultation with the Chairman,
may seek independent professional advice from a suitably qualified
adviser at the Company’s expense.
Board processes
The full Board held 10 meetings in the year, plus strategy and extraordinary
meetings as needed to address specific significant matters that may arise.
During July and January, when formal Board meetings were not scheduled,
Directors received update reports from the Managing Director and Chief
Financial Oﬃcer.
The Chairman, Managing Director, and Company Secretary prepare meeting
agendas. Standing items include the Managing Director’s report, updates
from Board Committee meetings, financial reports, strategic matters,
governance, risk management and compliance. All Directors receive Board
papers at least five business days before meetings. Executives are regularly
involved in Board discussions and Directors have other opportunities
for contact with a wider group of employees.
Conflicts of interest are declared and noted at each Board meeting.
Directors make declarations of private interests to Government annually
with changes noted and declared at each Board meeting.
Governance review
The Company, the Board and its Committees continue to monitor
governance arrangements on an ongoing basis. An external review of Board
eﬀectiveness and performance was undertaken and recommendations
implemented in 2011-2012.
Continuing Professional Development
The Board has a Continuing Professional Development (CPD) Policy to
encourage its Directors to further develop their skills and expertise through
high-quality learning and professional development opportunities.

5.2 Board committees
The Board has established a number of committees to help it perform
its duties and allow detailed consideration of complex issues. Its current
standing committees are the Audit, Business Transformation, Compliance,
Investment, and Remuneration Committees, as well as the State Trustees
Australia Foundation (STAF) Advisory Committee. Generally, committee
structures and membership are reviewed annually. In the case of the STAF
Advisory Committee, members who are not State Trustees’ representatives
are appointed for three years.

members are Julie Elliott, Anthony Fitzgerald and Dino Georgiou. During the
year, Paula Allen and Josh Borstein resigned and, eﬀective 28 February 2012,
Dino Georgiou was appointed.
Under its charter, the Committee reviews State Trustees’ compliance with
relevant legislative, regulatory and contractual obligations, reviews and
monitors how State Trustees’ overall compliance framework is maintained
and implemented, and assesses and monitors business risks as they relate
to compliance.
The Compliance Committee’s main responsibilities include:

Each committee has its own written charter setting out its roles and
responsibilities, composition, structure, membership requirements, and
the manner in which the committee operates. We review these charters
annually. We also regularly review the chairmen and members of each
committee as part of normal Board governance. During the year we
established the Business Transformation Committee and made changes
to the Audit, Compliance, Investment, Remuneration Committees, and
STAF Advisory Committee, details of which are below.

• reviewing management compliance reports and monitoring management
responses to compliance issues;

The Board and all the committees (except STAF Advisory Committee) have
at least one closed session each year without management being present.

• reviewing and approving the process used to identify, monitor,
and manage compliance-related risks;

All Board committees have authority, within the scope of their
responsibilities, to seek any information they require from any employee or
external party. They may also undertake any other activities consistent with
their charters.

• ensuring that where compliance breaches are identified, appropriate
and timely reporting occurs and appropriate rectification strategies
are implemented on a timely basis; and

The number of times each committee met during the year, and committee
members’ attendance record, are disclosed in the table of Directors’
meetings in the Directors’ Report.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee currently comprises four non-executive Directors. The
Committee’s Chairman is Patrick Burroughs, and its members are Julie Elliott,
Irene Irvine and Lindsay Smith. During the year, Annette Broadfoot resigned
and eﬀective 28 February 2012, Lindsay Smith was appointed.
The Audit Committee, at its discretion, invites the internal and external
auditors, Managing Director, General Manager Corporate Operations, and
Chief Financial Oﬃcer to attend its meetings.
The Committee advises on establishing and maintaining a framework
of internal control for managing State Trustees.
The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the internal audit
program conducted each financial year.
The internal auditors help the Board ensure compliance with internal
controls and risk management programs by regularly reviewing how well
the compliance and control systems function.
The Audit Committee also meets annually with the internal and external
auditors without management being present.
The Auditor-General is the organisation’s oﬃcial external auditor, but
he has contracted State Trustees’ external audit to Ernst & Young.
The Company outsources the internal audit function to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu.
The Audit Committee:
• oversees financial reporting and statutory accounts, and corporate
accounting policies;
• reviews, approves and monitors the system of internal controls;
• reviews the external audit plan; and
• in conjunction with the Compliance Committee sets an internal
audit program.
Business Transformation Committee
The Business Transformation Committee was established during the
year for the purposes of the program of business transformation. The
Committee’s Chairman is Julie Elliott, and its members are Patrick
Burroughs and Anthony Fitzgerald.
Under its charter, the Committee acts as delegate of the Board in relation
to the approved business transformation project, including:
• making decisions to give eﬀect to the business transformation project;
• overseeing the implementation of the project;
• assessing and monitoring business risks as they relate to the project; and
• providing guidance to management on the project.
Compliance Committee
The Compliance Committee comprises three non-executive Directors and
one executive Director. The Committee’s Chairman is Irene Irvine, and its

• meeting with the managed investments compliance plan auditors;
• monitoring the eﬀectiveness and completeness of compliance reporting;
• monitoring and overseeing compliance with relevant legislative,
regulatory, and contractual obligations (of a non-financial or
non-accounting nature);

• reviewing and approving the design of the annual compliance program.
Investment Committee
The Investment Committee comprises three non-executive Directors and
one executive Director. The Committee’s Acting Chairman is Julie Elliott and
its members are Anthony Fitzgerald, Dino Georgiou and Bobby Guttmann.
During the year, Paula Allen and Annette Broadfoot resigned and, eﬀective
28 February 2012, Dino Georgiou was appointed.
The Investment Committee’s main responsibilities include:
• overseeing the actions of management in relation to State Trustees’
investment funds, other than for:
i financial accounting and reporting;
ii compliance with regulatory requirements and unit pricing policies;
iii compliance by the custodian with its contractual obligations;
which are the responsibility of the Audit or Compliance Committees;
• overseeing management’s supervision of appointed external
investment advisors;
• considering on an annual basis, taking into account the views of the
Compliance Committee in relation to compliance issues, the suitability of
the appointed external service provider to continue to provide custodian
and investment administration services for the investments.
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises three non-executive Directors.
The Committee’s Chairman is Julie Elliott and during the year its members
were Patrick Burroughs, Josh Bornstein (resigned eﬀective 31 March 2012)
and Bobby Guttmann. The Managing Director attends by invitation and not
as a member of the Committee.
The Remuneration Committee operates according to its charter. It advises
the Board on general remuneration and incentive policies and practices,
and makes specific recommendations on remuneration packages and other
employment terms for the Managing Director and other senior executives.
Remuneration of executives, including the Managing Director, is
determined with reference to the Government Sector Executive
Remuneration Panel (GSERP).
The Committee also makes recommendations to the Board
on superannuation arrangements.
State Trustees Australia Foundation (STAF) Advisory Committee
The Committee’s Chairman is Lindsay Smith and its current members
are Anthony Fitzgerald, Robert Knowles AO and Lawrence St Leger, two
non-director members with a strong background in community services
and philanthropy. During the year, Dr Rhonda Gallbally AO resigned from
the committee.
The role of the STAF Advisory Committee, which meets at least once a year,
is to recommend how the STAF income should be distributed to, or benefit
eligible charitable recipients. Grants for this purpose are generated from
income earned on donations where the donors have not made binding
directions for grants to specific charities.
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Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2012
Consolidated entity
2012
$000s

2011
$000s
(restated)

1 July 2010
$000s
(restated)

8,040
11,769
5,945
2,999
1,813
49

827
10,302
11,105
3,004
1,366
151

4,331
9,116
8,777
2,577
1,392
-

30,615

26,755

26,193

29,277
3,853

26,609
3,918

25,160
3,530

Total non-current assets

33,130

30,527

28,690

Total assets

63,745

57,282

54,883

5,920
34

4,845
-

5,228
133
-

Notes
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Investments in managed investments
Advances to clients
Prepayments
Income Tax Equivalent

5
6
17

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant, and equipment
Deferred tax assets

7
4

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables
Income tax equivalent
Provisions

9
12

Employee entitlements
Total current liabilities

6,454

6,343

5,868

12,408

11,188

11,229

696
3
1,584

421
1,595

469
1,304

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Provisions
Employee entitlements

4
12

Total non-current liabilities

2,283

2,016

1,773

Total liabilities

14,691

13,204

13,002

Net assets

49,054

44,078

41,881

16,328
23,587

13,102
21,717

12,462
19,843

9,139

9,259

9,576

49,054

44,078

41,881

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Reserves
Retained profits
Total equity

10
8

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2012
Consolidated entity
Notes

2012
$000s

2011
$000s
(restated)

3

45,764
15,364
1,010
1,163

43,868
15,693
1,040
922

63,301

61,523

3,023
1,027
154
45,412
12,965

3,225
1,083
169
44,342
12,132

62,581

60,951

720

572

600

108

120

464

Fair value revaluation of land and buildings
Income tax equivalent (expense)

1,717
(87)

1,093
-

Other comprehensive income
for the period, net of tax

1,630

1,093

Total comprehensive income for the period

1,750

1,557

Revenue from continuing operations
Commissions and fees
Community Service Obligation revenue
Regionalisation Transition Funding
Other operating revenue
Total revenue
Expenses from continuing operations
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Lease rental charges – operating leases
Audit expenses
Employee benefits expense
Other expenses

3
19
3

Total expenses
Profit from continuing operations
before income tax equivalent
Income tax equivalent expense

4

Net profit
Other comprehensive income

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2012
Consolidated entity 2012
Contributed
Equity

Retained
Earnings

General
Reserve

Total

$000s

Asset
Revaluation
Reserve
$000s

$000s

$000s

$000s

13,102

12,310

9,259

9,407

44,078

Profit for the period
Other Comprehensive income

-

1,630

120
-

-

120
1,630

Total Comprehensive income for the period

-

1,630

120

-

1,750

3,226
-

-

(240)

240

3,226
-

16,328

13,940

9,139

9,647

49,054

Total equity at the start of the financial year

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Contribution from Owners
Profits transferred to / from General Reserve
As at 30th June 2012
Consolidated entity 2011 (restated)
Total equity at the start of the financial year

(restated)
12,462

11,217

9,576

8,626

41,881

Profit for the period
Other Comprehensive income

-

1,093

464
-

-

464
1,093

Total Comprehensive income for the period

-

1,093

464

-

1,557

640
-

-

(781)

781

640
-

13,102

12,310

9,259

9,407

44,078

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Contribution from Owners
Profits transferred to / from General Reserve
As at 30th June 2011

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2012
Consolidated entity
2012
$000s

2011
$000s
(restated)

46,735
15,364
934
1,116
(14,169)
(45,187)
(245)

43,213
15,933
762
694
(13,499)
(43,687)
(828)

4,548

2,588

42
(3,989)
7,037
(1,872)

7
(3,691)
644
(3,399)

1,218

(6,439)

Contribution from Owners
Dividends paid

1,447
-

347
-

Net cash flows from financing activities

1,447

347

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held

7,213

(3,504)

827

4,331

8,040

827

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities
Commissions and fees received
Community Service Obligation income received
Regionalisation Transitional Funding
Corporate Investment Income
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments of income tax equivalent
Net cash flows from operating activities

13a

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment
Proceeds from redemption of interests in managed investment schemes
Payments for interests in managed investment schemes
Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

5

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTE 1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
The financial report of State Trustees Limited (the Company) for the
year ended 30 June 2012 was authorised for issuance in accordance
with a resolution of the Directors on 21 August 2012.
State Trustees Limited is a State-owned company, which has been
classified as a for profit entity. The State of Victoria is the sole shareholder.
The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are
described in the Directors’ report.
NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation
The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act
2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. The
financial report has also been prepared on a historical cost basis, except
for land and buildings and financial assets and liabilities held at fair value
through profit or loss, which have been measured at fair value.
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand ($000) dollars unless otherwise stated.
a) Compliance with IFRS
The financial report complies with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
b) Principles of consolidation
This is the consolidated financial statements for State Trustees Limited
and its controlled entity collectively referred to as the “Group”. The
Statement of Financial Position of the Parent is disclosed in note 15.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany
balances and transactions, income and expenses and profit and losses
resulting from intra-Group transactions have been eliminated in full.
Each subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date on which control is
obtained by the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred out of the Group.
c) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable to the extent it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably
measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met
before revenue is recognised:
Commissions and fees
Commissions and fees are charged and earned pursuant to the
published schedule of fees. Revenue is recognised on an accruals
basis when the service is provided.
Community Services Agreement (CSA) revenue
Revenue is received from the State of Victoria under the Community
Services Agreement. This revenue is based on State Trustees providing
financial services management to the community as defined by
the agreement, and is recognised on an accruals basis when the
service is provided.
Grant income
Under the requirements of AASB 120: Accounting for Government
Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, Funding is treated
as income in the same period as the relevant expenses recorded
in the income statement.
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Interest revenue
Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the eﬀective interest
method. This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using
the eﬀective interest rate. This rate discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.
Dividends and Trust Distributions
Dividends and Trust Distributions are recognised when the right
to receive the payment is established.
d) Impairment of assets
State Trustees Limited conducts an annual internal review of asset values,
which is used as a source of information to assess for any indicators of
impairment. External factors, such as changes in expected future
processes, technology and economic conditions, are also monitored to
assess for indicators of impairment. If any indication of impairment exists,
an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount is calculated. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value, less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units).
e) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position and
cash flow statement comprise cash at bank, cash in hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.
f) Receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the eﬀective interest
method, less an allowance for impairment.
Collectability of receivables are reviewed on an ongoing basis at an
operating unit level. Individual debts that are known to be uncollectible
are written oﬀ when identified. An impairment provision is recognised
when there is objective evidence that the Group may not be able to
collect the receivable. Financial diﬃculties of the debtor, default
payments or debts more than 60 days overdue are considered
objective evidence of impairment.
Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted where
the eﬀect of discounting is immaterial.
Advances to clients are subject to an approval process prior to issue and
are periodically reviewed for impairment by divisional management.
g) Investments and other financial assets
Recognition and derecognition
Investments in financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. All
purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date
i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or been transferred.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial Assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or
losses on financial assets are recognised in profit or loss and the related
assets are classified as current assets in the Statement of Financial
Position. These financial assets are designated on the basis that they
are a group of financial assets which are managed and have their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with the risk
management and investment strategies of the Group as disclosed in Note
20. The Group’s financial assets consist of investments in unlisted trusts
which are valued at the redemption value per unit as reported by the
manager of the investments.

Receivables
Receivables are recorded at amortised cost, using the eﬀective interest
method less impairment. They are included in current assets, except for
those with maturities greater than 12 months after balance date, which
are classified as non-current.
Controlled unlisted companies
Investments in controlled unlisted companies are measured at cost
and impairment is tested annually.

i) Payables
Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost due to their short
term nature they are not discounted. They represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year
that are unpaid and arise when the Group becomes obliged to make
future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and
services. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within
30 days of recognition.

h) Property, plant and equipment

j) Employee benefits and provisions

Land and buildings are measured at fair value, based on periodic but
at least triennial valuations by external independent valuers, less
accumulated depreciation on buildings and less any impairment
losses recognised after the date of the revaluation.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Such cost includes
the cost of replacing parts that are eligible for capitalisation when the
cost of replacing the parts is incurred. Similarly, when each major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount
of the plant and equipment as a replacement only if it is eligible for
capitalisation. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the specific assets as follows:
Buildings
Building refurbishment
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fittings
Computers
Oﬃce equipment
Telephone system
System development
Motor vehicles

34 years
12 years
Lease term
13 years
4 years
7 years
5 years
3 years
5 years

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the reporting date using a discounted cash flow methodology. The
risks specific to the provision are factored into the cash flows and as
such a risk-free government bond rate relative to the expected life
of the provision is used as a discount rate.
Employee benefits
i) Wages, salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and
annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting
date are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting
date. They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled.
ii) Long service leave
The liability for long service leave is recognised and measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Consideration
is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of
employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments
are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national
government bonds with terms to maturity and currencies that match,
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

There has been no change to depreciation rates. System development
costs that will produce long-term company benefits are amortised and
depreciated over the asset’s useful life. The assets’ residual values, useful
lives and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each financial year-end.

k) Accounting for goods and services tax (GST)

Land and building revaluations
Any revaluation increment is credited to the asset revaluation reserve
included in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrement for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss,
in which case the increment is recognised in profit or loss.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement
of Financial Position.

Any revaluation decrement is recognised in profit or loss, except to the
extent that it oﬀsets a previous revaluation increment for the same asset,
in which case the decrement is debited directly to the asset revaluation
reserve to the extent of the credit balance existing in the revaluation
reserve for that asset.
Any accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated
against the gross carrying amounts of the assets and the net amounts
are restated to the revalued amounts of the assets.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except where the
GST incurred is not recoverable. In this case, it is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or part of the expense item as applicable.

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis and
the GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing
activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority
is classified as part of operating cash flows.
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount
of GST recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority.

Disposal
An item of property, plant, and equipment is derecognised on disposal
or when we can expect no further future economic benefits from its
use or disposal.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with the carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Upon disposal or derecognition, any revaluation reserve relating to
the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.
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l) Income tax
Income Tax Equivalent
State Trustees Limited is a state government-owned entity listed on
the register of the National Tax Equivalent Regime. As such, it is required
to account for its taxation liabilities in accordance with the Income
Tax Assessment Act 1936, and the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997
as required.
It pays tax as calculated in accordance with the respective taxation
legislation to the Victorian Government Consolidated Fund.
Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities
The calculation of deferred tax assets/liabilities are measured in
accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 112. As such, State Trustees
Limited accounts for the tax consequences of transactions and other
events in the same way that it accounts for the transactions and other
events themselves. Thus, for transactions recognised in profit or loss,
related tax eﬀects are also recognised in profit or loss. For transactions
and other events recognised directly in equity, any related tax eﬀects
are also recognised in equity.
A deferred tax asset or a deferred tax liability will be recognised for all
temporary diﬀerences that arise for the diﬀerence between the carrying
value of the asset or liability and its tax value.
Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in
future periods in respect of deductible temporary diﬀerences, the carry
forward of unused tax losses and the carry forward of unused tax credits.
A deferred tax asset shall be recognised for the carry forward of unused
tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
future profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.
Deferred tax liabilities are amounts of income taxes payable in future
periods in respect of taxable temporary diﬀerences.
Tax Consolidation
State Trustees Limited has formed an income tax consolidated group
consisting of State Trustees Limited (STL) and STL Financial Services
Limited (STLFSL). STL is the head entity of the tax consolidated group.
The entities within the tax consolidated Group have entered into a tax
funding arrangement and a tax-sharing agreement with the head entity.
Under the terms of the tax funding arrangement, STLFSL has agreed to
pay/receive a tax equivalent payment to or from STL based on the current
tax asset or liability of the entity. Such amounts are reflected in amounts
receivable from or payable to the other entity in the tax consolidated group.
The tax sharing agreement entered into between the members of the tax
consolidated group provides for the determination of the allocation of
income tax liabilities between the entities should STL default on its tax
payment obligations. No amounts have been recognised in the financial
statements in respect of this agreement as payment of any amounts
under the tax sharing agreement is considered remote.
m) Executor Services Capital Commission revenue accrual
Management have changed the method for calculating the Executor
Services revenue accrual during the 2011/12 financial year.
Previous Accounting Policy
Revenue is accrued for executor services over the estimated service
period. The time taken to administer an estate can vary due to
complications or other circumstances. The fees and charges can vary
due to the nature of estimates used for estate values and commission
rates. Revenue is brought to account, on a straight-line basis, over a
nine-month period, except where the estate is completed earlier and
the remaining revenue is brought to account.
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Change in Accounting Policy
Commission is now to be accrued over the estate service period. Revenue
is recognised on a proportionate basis, during the estate service period
based on work performed in line with the defined milestones that result
in the settlement of the estate. Our benchmarks for this are 31 weeks for
a low value estate to 39 weeks for a standard/complex estate. The time
taken to administer an estate can vary due to legal or other
circumstances. The fees and charges vary due to the estimates used for
estate values and commission rates through the estate service period.
Management consider that this method of calculating the Executor
Services Capital Commission accrual is more reliable in that it is
measuring the amount of work performed in administering an estate,
rather than over a straight-line basis.
Impact upon the 2011/12 Financial Statements
The impact of this change was to reduce the Executor Services revenue
accrual by $918,000 for June 2012. This is reflected in the Fees and
Commissions section of the Statement of Comprehensive income for
2011/12 and the Receivables section of the Statement of Financial Position.
It has not been practicable to estimate comparative revenue information
for the previous financial year (2010/11) as the data cannot be reliably
obtained to perform the necessary calculations for the period. The data
in relation to the defined milestones has been developed substantially
over the 2011/12 financial year in order to recognise the revenue
accrual on an improved basis.
n) Contributed equity
Ordinary shares of the company are classified as equity, government
contribution received/receivable for which Department of Treasury and
Finance made a specific designation as contribution from owners are
treated as capital contribution without issuing shares.
o) Operating leases
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
p) New accounting standards and interpretations
AASB 124 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures
(Eﬀective 1 January 2011):
The revised AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures (December 2009) simplifies
the definition of a related party, clarifying its intended meaning and
eliminating inconsistencies from the definition, including:
a) The definition now identifies a subsidiary and an associate with the
same investor as related parties of each other
b) Entities significantly influenced by one person and entities significantly
influenced by a close member of the family of that person are no
longer related parties of each other
c) The definition now identifies that, whenever a person or entity has
both joint control over a second entity and joint control or significant
influence over a third party, the second and third entities are related to
each other
A partial exemption is also provided from the disclosure requirements for
government-related entities. Entities that are related by virtue of being
controlled by the same government can provide reduced related party
disclosures.
Management does not expect this will have a significant impact upon
the financial statements.

AASB 2010-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB
1, 3, 4, 5, 101, 107, 112, 118, 119, 121, 132, 133, 134, 137, 139, 140,
1023 & 1038 and Interpretations 112, 115, 127, 132 & 1042]
(Eﬀective 1 January 2011):
This Standard makes numerous editorial amendments to a range of
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, including
amendments to reflect changes made to the text of IFRS by the IASB.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement (Eﬀective 1 January 2013):
AASB 13 establishes a single source of guidance for determining the fair
value of assets and liabilities. AASB 13 does not change when an entity
is required to use fair value, but rather, provides guidance on how to
determine fair value when fair value is required or permitted. Application
of this definition may result in diﬀerent fair values being determined
for the relevant assets.

These amendments have no major impact on the requirements of the
amended pronouncements.

AASB 13 also expands the disclosure requirements for all assets or
liabilities carried at fair value. This includes information about the
assumptions made and the qualitative impact of those assumptions
on the fair value determined.

AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures (Eﬀective 1 July 2011):
This standard is as a consequence of phase 1 of the joint Trans-Tasman
Convergence project of the AASB and FRSB.
This standard, with AASB 2011-1 relocates all Australian specific
disclosures from other standards to one place and revises disclosures
in the following areas:
a) Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards
b) The statutory basis or reporting framework for financial statements
c) Whether the entity is a for-profit or not-for-profit entity
d) Whether the financial statements are general purpose
or special purpose
e) Audit fees
f) Imputation credits
q) New accounting standards and interpretations but not yet eﬀective
AASB 9 Financial Instruments (Eﬀective 1 January 2013):
AASB 9 includes requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. It was further amended by AASB 2010-7 to reflect
amendments to the accounting for financial liabilities.
These requirements improve and simplify the approach for classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the requirements
of AASB 139. The main changes are described below.
a) Financial assets that are debt instruments will be classified based on
(1) the objective of the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets; (2) the characteristics of the contractual cash flows.
b) Allows an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains
and losses on investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading in other comprehensive income. Dividends in respect of these
investments that are a return on investment can be recognised in
profit or loss and there is no impairment or recycling on disposal
of the instrument.
c) Financial assets can be designated and measured at fair value through
profit or loss at initial recognition if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise
from measuring assets or liabilities, or recognising the gains and losses
on them, on diﬀerent bases.
d) Where the fair value option is used for financial liabilities the change
in fair value is to be accounted for as follows:
- The change attributable to changes in credit risk are presented
in other comprehensive income (OCI)

Consequential amendments were also made to other standards
via AASB 2011-8.
AASB 119 Employee Benefits (Eﬀective 1 January 2013):
The revised standard changes the definition of short-term employee
benefits. The distinction between short-term and other long-term
employee benefits is now based on whether the benefits are expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the reporting date.
Consequential amendments were also made to other standards
via AASB 2011-10.
Management do not believe that the new accounting standards and
interpretations that will occur in the future will have a material impact
upon the financial statements prepared by the company.
r) Prior period adjustment
During the 2011/12 financial year, the company discovered a billing
discrepancy resulting in overcharging of fees to clients in relation to
Genealogical searches. Clients were reimbursed for this overcharging
with interest where applicable. The refunds were settled entirely during
the 2011/12 financial year.
The fees overcharged were identified across the accounting periods
of 2005/06 to 2010/11. In accordance with AASB108, the appropriate
adjustments have been reflected below for 2010 and 2011 financial years.
The following restatements have occurred in the June 2011 financial
statements in relation to the adjustment for the 2010/11 financial year:
Statement of Comprehensive Income:
Fees and Commissions reduced by $155,000
Income Tax Equivalent reduced by $46,000
Statement of Financial Position:
Receivables reduced by $155,000
Income Tax Equivalent reduced by $46,000 (moved from tax payable
to tax receivable)
The restatement that occurred in relation to the 2005/06 to 2009/10
financial years were applied to the restated financial statements for
the 1st July 2010. The adjustments were made entirely to the
Statement of Financial Position:
Receivables reduced by $356,000
Income Tax Equivalent reduced by $107,000 (payable)
Retained Earnings reduced by $249,000 (to reflect the lower profit)

- The remaining change is presented in profit or loss
If this approach creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in
the profit or loss, the eﬀect of the changes in credit risk are also
presented in profit or loss.
Consequential amendments were also made to other standards as a
result of AASB 9, introduced by AASB 2009-11 and superseded by AASB
2010-7 and 2010-10.
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NOTE 3. OTHER REVENUE AND EXPENSES
Consolidated entity
2012
$000s

2011
$000s

30
305
183
252
393

303
692
(73)
-

1,163

922

369
372
705
190
1,233
2
140

369
366
501
184
1,623
2
132

3,011

3,177

12

48

12

48

3,023

3,225

5,423
3,720
1,815
1,128
445
434

5,060
3,764
1,146
1,001
525
106
530

12,965

12,132

INCOME
Other revenue from operating activities
Profit on sale of fixed asset
Interest received
Distributions from Managed Investments
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value
Disposal of the External Financial Planning Business

EXPENSES
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation
Building
Building improvements
Leasehold improvements
Fixtures and fittings
Computer and oﬃce equipment
Telephone system
Motor vehicles

Amortisation
System development

Total
Other expenses
Corporate
Building and oﬃce
Marketing and advertising
Information system
Travel and Motor Vehicle
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Other
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NOTE 4. INCOME TAX EQUIVALENT EXPENSE
Consolidated entity
2012
$000s

2011
$000s

Profit/(loss) before tax

720

572

Prima facie tax at 30%

216

172

Imputation Credits and Other
Entertainment
Adjustment on prior year

(12)
6
390

(49)
(15)

Total income tax expense attributable to operating profit

600

108

392
210
(2)

561
(436)
(17)

600

108

Tax eﬀect of non-temporary diﬀerences:

Total income tax expense comprises movements in:
Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense
Other adjustments

Taxable and deductible temporary diﬀerences arise from the following:
2012 Consolidated entity
Opening
Balance
$000s

Charged
to income
$000s

Charged
to Equity
$000s

Closing
Balance
$000s

7
2,756
304
60
175
379
8
211
18

(3)
12
20
(3)
51
(61)
(8)
(211)
145
(7)

-

4
2,768
324
57
226
318
145
11

3,918

(65)

-

3,853

(67)
(354)

32
(2)
(219)
-

(87)

(35)
(2)
(219)
(440)

(421)

(189)

(87)

(696)

Gross deferred tax assets
Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for employee entitlements
Provision for accrued expenses
Accrued audit fees
Accrued Lease expenses
Carry forward capital losses
FBT
Fixed Assets (General)
Fixed Assets (Refurbishment)
Unrealised Losses

Gross deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised gains on investments
FBT
Fixed Assets (General)
Asset revaluation reserve

NOTE 5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Consolidated entity
2012
$000s

2011
$000s

Cash on hand and at bank
Short term money market deposits at call

2,554
5,486

725
102

Total cash assets

8,040

827
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NOTE 6. RECEIVABLES (CURRENT)
Consolidated entity

Consolidated entity

2012
$000s

2011
$000s

4,280
(13)

1,762
(24)

4,267

1,738

7,502

8,564

11,769

10,302

Receivables
Less: Provision for doubtful debts

Accrued income
Total current receivables

NOTE 7. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Consolidated entity 2012
Land

Building

Leasehold

Furniture
& Fittings

$000s

$000s

$000s

$000s

Computer
& Oﬃce
equipment
$000s

Opening Value

5,980

11,721

3,941

3,014

Additions at cost
Disposals at cost
Revaluation of asset
Elimination of accumulated depreciation

(380)
-

23
2,097
(741)

369
-

5,600

13,100

-

741
(741)

5,600

Opening accumulated depreciation
Depreciation for the year
Accumulated depreciation on disposals
Elimination of accumulated depreciation

Net Book Value as at 30 June 2012

Motor
System
Vehicles Development

Total

$000s

$000s

$000s

18,438

834

10,048

53,976

100
-

306
(9)
-

93
(72)
-

-

891
(81)
1,717
(741)

4,310

3,114

18,735

855

10,048

55,762

1,686
705
-

1,797
190
-

15,510
1,235
(8)
-

380
140
(61)
-

10,036
12
-

29,409
3,023
(69)
(741)

-

2,391

1,987

16,737

459

10,048

31,622

13,100

1,919

1,127

1,998

396

-

24,140

Capital WIP additions

5,137
29,277
Consolidated entity 2011
Land
$000s

$000s

$000s

$000s

Computer
& Oﬃce
equipment
$000s

$000s

$000s

$000s

Opening Value

4,900

12,400

4,200

2,887

17,170

764

10,048

52,369

Additions at cost
Disposals at cost
Revaluation of asset
Elimination of accumulated depreciation

1,080
-

43
13
(735)

283
(542)
-

127
-

1,268
-

94
(24)
-

-

1,815
(566)
1,093
(735)

5,980

11,721

3,941

3,014

18,438

834

10,048

53,976

-

735
(735)

1,614
501
(429)
-

1,613
184
-

13,885
1,625
-

273
132
(25)
-

9,988
48
-

27,373
3,225
(454)
(735)

-

-

1,686

1,797

15,510

380

10,036

29,409

5,980

11,721

2,255

1,217

2,928

454

12

24,567

Opening accumulated depreciation
Depreciation for the year
Accumulated depreciation on disposals
Elimination of accumulated depreciation

Net Book Value as at 30 June 2011
Capital WIP additions

Building

Leasehold

Furniture
& Fittings

Motor
System
Vehicles Development

Total

2,042
26,609

Capital Gains Tax (CGT) has not been taken into account in determining the carrying amounts of land and buildings. The land and buildings were acquired
before CGT was introduced. The economic entity is not liable to pay CGT except with respect to building refurbishments since the introduction of CGT.

NOTE 8. RESERVES
Consolidated entity
2012
$000s

2011
$000s

General Reserve – Trustee Companies Act
Under the Trustee Companies Act 1984 (the Act), a reserve fund of not less than half of one per cent of the
value of company-managed trust estates in Victoria must be provided (refer to Note 18). In the event that a
liquidator, receiver or manager is appointed, reserve fund monies are to be paid from the trustee company
according to Section 39(3) of the Act. Section 38 of the Act requires the company to place assets into a
reserve fund. These assets must be managed consistent with requirements of the Trustee Act 1958.
On 30 June 1999, in keeping with legislation amending the State Trustees (State Owned Company)
Act 1994, the corpus amounts held by Common Funds managed by the parent entity were paid to
State Trustees Limited and transferred to a general reserve. The movement in the general reserve
reflects a transfer of $240,000 in 2012 (2011: transfer of $781,000) from Retained Profits.
Asset Revaluation Reserve
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements in the fair value of land
and buildings to the extent that they oﬀset one another.
Land and buildings were revalued to recoverable amounts subject to existing use as at 30 June 2012
in accordance with AASB 116. In June 2012, the Directors obtained an independent valuation of the
company-owned land and buildings, which resulted in an increase of $1,630k from the prior year.
The independent valuer was CB Richard Ellis.
Assets comprising the Reserve Fund
Land and building: Note 7
Reserve fund requirements: Note 18

18,700
9,647

17,700
9,407

9,053

8,293

Trade creditors, unsecured
Other creditors, unsecured
Staﬃng costs and packages
Unearned revenue

1,520
2,545
1,581
274

953
2,215
1,456
221

Total current payables

5,920

4,845

12,462

12,462

3,866

640

16,328

13,102

Surplus

NOTE 9. PAYABLES (CURRENT)

NOTE 10. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Share capital
Ordinary shares
(12,461,664 fully paid shares, 2011: 12,461,664)
Contribution from Owners
Total Share Capital

The entity has only one shareholder, the State of Victoria, which owns all the ordinary shares. This
entitles the holder to receive dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the company that is in
proportion to the number of, and amounts paid on, the shares held.
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NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS
Consolidated entity
2012
$000s

2011
$000s

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years

1,343
12,849
65,575

907
12,568
66,142

Operating lease commitments

79,767

79,617

Operating lease commitments

The operating lease commitments reflect our lease obligations for leasehold premises. This includes the
Glen Waverley, Lt Bourke Street, Dandenong, Bendigo and Footscray leases over the non-optional lease
period. Each lease has agreed annual increases that have been factored into the commitment and no
lease is subject to market reviews in the non-optional lease period. There are no purchase options, or
escalation clauses and lease renewals are subject to mutual agreement by all parties.
Operating expenditure contracted for is payable as follows
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than two years
Later than two years but not later than five years
Operating expenditure commitments

361
840
367

349
1,059
527

1,568

1,935

The operating expenditure contracted for represents the outgoings for our leasehold premises payable to
the landlord and cleaning contracts in relation to our premises.
Capital expenditure contracted for is payable as follows:
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than two years
Later than two years but not later than five years

186
-

1,478
-

Operating expenditure commitments

186

1,478

The capital expenditure represents future purchases which the business has entered into in relation to the
fit-out of our new oﬃce premises in Bendigo.
NOTE 12. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provisions
Onerous Lease Provision
Balance at beginning of the year
Arising during the financial year

37

-

Total Onerous Lease Provision

37

-

The Onerous Lease Provision is classified as
Current
34
Non-current
3
A provision has been created to recognise an onerous lease in relation to a leasehold property.
The company from July 2012 will no longer conduct operations from this location. The lease expires
in August 2013. The business hopes to be able to sub-let the premises which will in turn reduce
the amount of the provision.

-

Contingent liabilities: Performance bonds
Guarantee in favour of the ASX Settlement and
Transfer Corporation Pty Ltd (CHESS membership)
Guarantee in favour of ASIC (AFS Licence)

500
20

500
20

Total contingent liabilities

520

520

The company has two bank guarantees established with our bankers relating to regulatory requirements
for both the ASX and ASIC. Management deem that the realisation of these contingent liabilities is a
remote event owing to our management practices.
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NOTE 13. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Consolidated entity
2012
$000s

2011
$000s

a. Cash reconciliation
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash at bank and on hand,
and short term money market deposits at call, as shown in Note 5.
b. Reconciliation of net cash inflow from net profit after tax to net cash provided by operating activities
Net profit after income tax

120

464

(30)

106

Add/(less):
non-operating activities
• sale of fixed assets
Adjustments for non-cash income and expense items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Changes in assets and liabilities
• Income tax equivalent balance from the parent entity
• Deferred tax liability
• Deferred tax asset
• Employee entitlements
• Specific Provisions
• Receivables
• Prepayments
• Payables

3,023

3,225

102
189
65
100
37
314
(447)
1,075

(284)
(48)
(388)
766
(894)
25
(384)

Net cash inflow from operating activities

4,548

2,588

NOTE 14. CONTROLLED ENTITIES
The consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2012 include the following controlled entities. The
financial year of the controlled entities is the same as that of the parent entity.
Place of
Controlled entity incorporation

STL Financial
Services Limited

Australia

Book value of
Contribution to
parent entity’s
the results in
Type of shares investment in $ % of shares held
$000

Ordinary

2012

2011

2012

2011

2012

2011

5.2m

5.2m

100

100

240

310

STL Financial Services Limited has $5.2 million of paid up capital which supports the Australian Financial
Services Licence requirements in respect of minimum net tangible assets. The State of Victoria is
State Trustees Limited’s ultimate parent.
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NOTE 15. PARENT ENTITY INFORMATION – STATE TRUSTEES LIMITED
Information relating to State Trustees Limited:
30 June
2012
$’000

30 June
2011
$’000
(restated)

1st July
2010
$’000
(restated)

Current assets
Non-current assets

23,734
38,185

19,831
35,521

19,215
33,652

Total assets

61,919

55,352

52,867

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

12,395
2,248

11,142
1,949

11,128
1,712

Total liabilities

14,643

13,091

12,840

Issued capital
Retained earnings
Asset revaluation reserve
General reserve

16,328
7,361
13,940
9,647

13,102
7,442
12,310
9,407

12,462
7,722
11,217
8,626

Total shareholders’ equity

47,276

42,261

40,027

158
1,788

501
1,594

N/A
N/A

500
20

500
20

500
20

Profit or loss of the parent entity
Total comprehensive income of the parent entity
Contingent Liabilities: Performance bonds
Guarantee in favour of the ASX Settlement and
Transfer Corporation Pty Ltd (CHESS membership)
Guarantee in favour of ASIC (AFS Licence)

State Trustees Limited (parent entity) has entered into the operating lease commitments, operating
expenditure commitments and capital expenditure commitments as disclosed in Note 11 of these
financial statements.
NOTE 16. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY
A significant portion of revenue is received from the State of Victoria via the Community Services
Agreement. A five-year agreement expired on 30 June 2012. The contract has been extended, agreed and
signed by both parties for a further twelve months to 30 June 2013. This contract is between State Trustees
Limited and the Department of Human Services (refer to the Statement of Comprehensive Income).
The company has entered into a regional funding agreement with the State of Victoria via the
Department of Treasury and Finance. The funding arrangement is in the form of capital contributions to
fund capital expenditure and government grant income to fund operational and transitional expenditure.
The value of the funding arrangement is $12.6 million.
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NOTE 17. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Key management personnel
State Trustees Limited’s key management personnel include the Directors and those executives reporting
directly to the Managing Director.
Directors
The following persons held the position of company Director during the past financial year:
Julie Elliott
Patrick Burroughs
Dr Irene Irvine
Bobby Guttmann
Josh Bornstein (ceased 30 March 2012)

Anthony Fitzgerald*
Dino Georgiou
Lindsay Smith
Paula Allen (ceased 30 November 2011)
Annette Broadfoot (ceased 30 November 2011)

* Anthony Fitzgerald is the Managing Director as well as a member of the executive and all of his
remuneration is included in the remuneration table for company directors.
The remuneration of the company directors is tabled below.
2012
$000s

2011
$000s

Base remuneration
Short-term incentives
Termination benefits
Post-employment benefits

565
54
56

576
70
58

Total remuneration of directors

675

704

The following persons held executive positions during the past financial year:
Anthony Fitzgerald
Prue Willsford
John Brennan
Angela Burton
Vicki Hood
Craig Dent
Andrew Schuette
Andrew Lloyde
Maurice Cruz

Managing Director
General Manager, Corporate Operations
General Manager, Strategy and Network Development
General Manager, Operations
General Manager, Sales and Marketing
General Manager, Client Services
General Manager, People and Culture (ceased 28 November 2011)
General Manager, Client Operations (ceased 11 November 2011)
General Manager, Client Services (Acting – ceased 11 November 2011)

The remuneration of the key executives is tabled below.
2012
$000s

2011
$000s

Base remuneration
Short-term incentives
Termination benefits
Post-employment benefits

1,163
167
93
119

1,450
148
113
158

Total remuneration of executives

1,542

1,869

Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
The principles underlying our remuneration policies are outlined in the Corporate Governance Statement.
Remuneration is based on the Government Sector Employment Remuneration Panel (GSERP) framework.
This is structured as a total employment cost package, delivered as a mix of cash and prescribed non-financial
benefits at the executives’ discretion. Executives receive no more than 80 per cent of the Managing Director’s
base salary (as determined by GSERP). In addition, they are oﬀered short-term incentives to the maximum
of 20 per cent of total base remuneration.
Other transactions with key management or entities related to them
There are no other transactions with key management personnel in the financial year ended 30 June 2012.
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NOTE 17. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED
Transactions with STL Financial Services Limited
The parent entity entered into the following transactions during the financial year with its controlled entity.
It advanced and repaid amounts on short-term inter-company accounts. These are repayable on demand.
Consolidated entity

Dividend payments received
Inter-company receivables
Inter-company tax related receivables

Parent entity

2012
$000s

2011
$000s

2012
$000s

2011
$000s

-

-

279
2
173

347
100

All transactions with related parties are conducted on commercial terms and conditions.
Transactions with inveST Funds
Group Investments in the inveST Funds:
inveST Diversified Income Fund
inveST Australian Equity Fund
inveST Property Fund
inveST International Equity Fund

4,383
1,562
-

8,408
993
554
1,150

1,091
390
-

3,378
405
219
452

Total investment in inveST funds

5,945

11,105

1,481

4,454

inveST Funds
Common Funds

3,815
5,009

3,507
4,982

3,815
5,009

3,507
4,982

Total fees and commissions

8,824

8,489

8,824

8,489

Fees and Commissions received from:

State Trustees Limited received fees in its capacity as the Responsible Entity of the inveST Funds. State Trustees
Limited received fees in its capacity as Manager and Trustee of the Cash and Charitable Common Funds.
Directors’ interests
There are no Directors’ interests in any of the Funds managed by the Group.
NOTE 18. CLIENT ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT AND TRUSTEESHIP
Consolidated entity
2012
$000s

2011
$000s

Total client assets under management and trusteeship were as follows. These amounts are not reflected
in the Statement of Financial Position as they are held in trust on behalf of the entities’ clients.
Investments, real estate, personal, and other assets
Client investments in Common Funds

1,039,441
889,916

1,027,930
853,380

Total Assets under Management and Trusteeship

1,929,357

1,881,310

Audit or review of the financial statements

154

169

Total remuneration*

154

169

NOTE 19. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

* Total remuneration includes remuneration paid (or due to be paid) to the auditor, Victorian Auditor
General’s Oﬃce (VAGO), of the parent entity and its controlled entities.
During the year, the auditors (VAGO) were paid for auditing the Common Funds and inveST Funds where
State Trustees Limited acts as trustee and responsible entity. The total amount due and payable was
$257,268 (2011: $279,684), including the $154,372 disclosed above.
During the year, the audit service provider, Ernst&Young (EY) were paid for auditing the State Trustees
Australia Foundation and State Trustees Australia Foundation Open Fund where State Trustees Limited
acts as Trustee. The total amount due and payable was $18,707 (2011: $34,498). These expenses are
included in Note 3: Other Expenses – Corporate.
During the year, the audit service provider (EY) were paid for auditing the Residents Trust Fund where
State Trustees Limited acts as Fund Manager and Trustee. The total amount due and payable was
$11,453 (2011: $12,947). These expenses are included in Note 3: Other Expenses – Corporate.
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NOTE 20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and short-term deposits and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. The financial instruments’ main purpose is to generate a return on the
Group’s investments. The Group has various other financial instruments such as receivables and accounts
payable that arise directly from its operations.
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk, market risk,
and liquidity and cash flow risk. These risks are measured using a method that reflects the expected impact
on the results from reasonably possible changes in the relevant risk variables. Information about these risk
exposures at the reporting date, measured on this basis, is disclosed below. Information about the total fair
value of financial instruments exposed to risk, as well as compliance with established investment mandate
limits, is also monitored by Management and the Investment Committee and reported on a monthly basis.
Interest rate risk exposures
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will aﬀect future cashflows
or the fair values of financial instruments. The Group has established limits on investments in interest
bearing assets, which are monitored weekly.
The Group’s exposure to interest rates is limited to cash and short term deposits as disclosed in Note 5.
The Group has no borrowings.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s Statement of Comprehensive Incomes
to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant.
The sensitivity of the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the eﬀect of the assumed changes
in interest rates on:
• The interest income for one year, based on the floating rate cash and cash equivalent
financial assets held at 30 June 2012.
Accounting Assumptions - Variability of interest rates
The basis points sensitivity is based on the volatility of change in interest rates over the past 10 years.
Consolidated entity
Equity – sensitivity of interest income
+100 bps
-100 bps
$
$
30 June 2012
30 June 2011

110,356
37,249

(110,356)
(37,249)

Post tax profit higher/lower
+100 bps
-100 bps
$
$
77,249
26,074

(77,249)
(26,074)

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in foreign exchange rates. There is no significant direct foreign exchange risk
exposure to the Group.
Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk involves counterparties failure to perform contractual obligations that will cause
the Group to incur financial losses. Concentrations of credit risk are minimised primarily by ensuring:
• Transactions are undertaken with a diverse range of counterparties, a large amount with the Victorian
Department of Human Services.
• A majority of transactions are undertaken with clients under our administration.
In addition, receivables balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that exposure to bad
debts has not been significant. There is no material exposure to a group of counterparties that is expected
to be aﬀected similarly by changes in economic or other conditions. The carrying amount of financial assets
that is recorded in the financial statements represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.
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NOTE 20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
Allowance for impairment loss
Receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-60 day terms. An impairment loss is
recognised when there is objective evidence that an individual receivable is impaired. A provision
for impairment loss of $13,000 (2011: $24,000) has been recognised by the Group.
Movements in the provision for impairment loss were as follows:
Consolidated entity

At 1 July
Charge for the year
Amounts written oﬀ or reversed
At 30 June

2012
$000s

2011
$000s

24
17
(28)

30
28
(34)

13

24

61-90 days
$000s

+91 days
$000s

At 30 June, the ageing analysis of receivables is as follows:
Total
$000s

0-30 days
$000s

31-60 days
000s

2012 Consolidated
11,769
11,413
70
43
243
2011 Consolidated
10,302
9,965
54
21
262
Other balances within receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due. It is expected that
these other balances will be received when due. The receivables will be realised when the business finalises
the relevant client files. The majority of these relate to Deceased Estates products which are still open, but
are waiting on further actions (which include legal related issues) to be finalised with outstanding liabilities
to be settled.
Liquidity and cash flow risk
Liquidity risk is the risk in either realising assets or otherwise raising suﬃcient funds to satisfy commitments
associated with the entity’s operations. Cash flow risk relates to the fluctuations in future cash flows from
holding financial instruments. Risk management guidelines adopted that are designed to minimise liquidity
and cash flow risk are:
• Ensuring substantial cash reserves are held by the entity with major Australian banks.
• Ensuring there is no significant exposure to illiquid or thinly-traded financial instruments.
• Applying limits to ensure that there is no concentration of liquidity risk to a particular counterparty or market.
Maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities based on management’s expectations.
To monitor existing financial assets and liabilities as well as to enable an eﬀective controlling of future risks
State Trustees Limited monitors risk through reporting that reflects management’s expectations of future
settlement of financial assets and liabilities. The risk implied from the values shown in the table below,
reflects a balanced view of cash inflows and outflows.
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NOTE 20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
2012 Consolidated entity
<6 months
$000s

6–12 months
$000s

1–5 years
$000s

>5 years
$000s

Total
$000s

8,040
11,762
2,622

6
377

-

-

8,040
11,768
2,999

4,383
1,562
-

-

-

-

4,383
1,562
-

28,369

383

-

-

28,752

4,065

–

–

–

4,065

4,065

–

–

–

4,065

827
10,280
2,554

22
450

-

-

827
10,302
3,004

8,408
993
554
1,150

-

-

-

8,408
993
554
1,150

24,766

472

-

-

25,238

3,168

-

-

-

3,168

3,168

-

-

-

3,168

Financial assets
Cash and deposits
Receivables
Advances to clients
Interests in inveST Funds
> Diversified income
> Australian Equity
> Property
> International Equity

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable

Financial assets
Cash and deposits
Receivables
Advances to clients
Interests in inveST Funds
> Diversified income
> Australian equity
> Property
> International equity

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices. Market risk
is managed and monitored using sensitivity analysis, and minimised through ensuring that all investment
activities are undertaken in accordance with established mandate limits and investment strategies. This
risk exposure is managed by diversifying investments and managing to a conservative asset allocation
model. 15% (2011: 25%) of our financial investments are in Growth assets (exposure to listed domestic
equities through investment in managed investment schemes) and 85% (2011: 75%) are invested in
defensive assets (exposure to cash and fixed interest through investments in managed investment
schemes). State Trustees Limited is indirectly exposed to market risk by holding units in the inveST Funds.
The performance of the inveST Funds due to the market risk can impact upon the distributions received
from our unit holdings, the underlying value of these unit holdings as well as the fees earned by
State Trustees Limited being the responsible entity of the funds.
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NOTE 20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities decreases as a result of changes in market prices,
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual stock or broader economic factors
aﬀecting equity markets as a whole. Equity price risk exposure arises from the Group’s investment in
Managed Investment Schemes.
The eﬀect on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income due to
reasonably possible changes in market factors (as represented by the equity indices) with all other
variables held constant, is indicated in the tables below.
Accounting Assumptions - Variability of equity price
The basis points sensitivity is based on the volatility of change in the respective benchmark
indices over the last 10 years.
Consolidated entity 30 June 2012
Eﬀect on
Change in
Eﬀect on
Statement of
equity price operating profit Financial Position
%
$
$
inveST Diversified Income Fund
UBS Australian Composite Bond Index

+2.9%
-2.9%

127,904
(127,904)

127,904
(127,904)

+13.4%
-13.4%

209,368
(209,368)

209,368
(209,368)

inveST Australian Equity Fund
S&P ASX 100 Property Accumulation Index

Consolidated entity 30 June 2011
Eﬀect on
Change in
Eﬀect on
Statement of
equity price operating profit Financial Position
%
$
$
inveST Diversified Income Fund
UBS Australian Composite Bond Index

+3%
-3%

252,248
(252,248)

252,248
(252,248)

+18%
-18%

99,720
(99,720)

99,720
(99,720)

+13.5%
-13.5%

134,052
(134,052)

134,052
(134,052)

+16.5%
-16.5%

189,694
(189,694)

189,694
(189,694)

inveST Property Fund
S&P ASX 200 Property Accumulation Index
inveST Australian Equity Fund
S&P ASX 100 Property Accumulation Index
inveST International Equity Fund
MSCI World Ex-Australia Accumulation Index
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The financial assets and liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position are carried at fair value.
The fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices and the financial instruments are classified
as Level 2. Inputs are observable for the asset, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).
The fair values of the Group’s investments in unlisted unit trusts are valued on balance date at the
redemption price as published by the underlying Fund’s Responsible Entity.
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NOTE 21. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that aﬀect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually
evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and
expenses. Management bases its judgements and estimates on historical experience and on other various
factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The result of this forms the basis of the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may diﬀer from these estimates under diﬀerent assumptions and conditions.
Management has identified the following critical accounting policies for which significant judgements,
estimates and assumptions are made. Actual results may diﬀer from these estimates under diﬀerent
assumptions and conditions and may materially aﬀect financial results or the financial position reported
in future periods. Further details of the nature of these assumptions and conditions may be found in
the relevant notes to the financial statements.
Taxation
The Group’s accounting policy for taxation requires management’s judgement as to the types of
arrangements considered to be a tax on income in contrast to an operating cost. Judgement is also
required in assessing whether deferred tax assets and certain deferred tax liabilities are recognised on the
Statement of Financial Position. Deferred tax assets, including those arising from tax losses, capital losses
and temporary diﬀerences are recognised only where it is considered more likely than not that they will
be recovered, which is dependent on the generation of suﬃcient future taxable profits.
Bonus provision
The calculation of the bonus provision is comprised of three Components:
• Executive contracts
• Remuneration and benefit entitlements
• and in line with conditions outlined in the Collective Workplace Agreement 2007
Management bases its judgements and estimates on:
• Historical experience
• Current financial and non financial performance and,
• Other various factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances
A portion of these estimates are yet to be approved by the Remuneration Committee.
Valuation of investments
The Group has designated the classification of investments in unlisted unit trusts at fair value through profit
or loss. The respective movements in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
The fair value of investments in unlisted unit trusts has been determined by reference to quoted
redemption prices as reported by the manager of these investments.
NOTE 22. MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
No circumstance has arisen that has aﬀected or may significantly aﬀect the company’s operations
since 30 June 2012.
NOTE 23. STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENTS
The consolidated entity provides trustee and related financial services and operates
predominantly within Victoria.
NOTE 24. REGISTERED OFFICE
State Trustees Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.
Its registered oﬃce and principal place of business is:
State Trustees Limited
168 Exhibition Street
Melbourne, Victoria 3000
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Directors’ Declaration

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of State Trustees Limited, we state that:
In the opinion of the Directors:
a) The financial statements and notes of the consolidated entity are in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, including:
i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial positions as at 30 June 2012,
and of its performances for the year ended on that date; and
ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations)
and the Corporations Regulations 2001.
b) The financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards
as disclosed in Note 2; and
c) There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts
as and when they become due and payable.
On behalf of the Board of State Trustees Limited

Julie A Elliott Chairman of Directors
Melbourne, 21 August 2012
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Anthony G Fitzgerald Managing Director
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of State Trustees Limited
The Financial Report
The accompanying financial report for the year ended 30 June 2012 of State Trustees Limited which comprises the statement of financial
position, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows, notes comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration, has been audited. The financial report
includes the consolidated financial statements of the consolidated entity, comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the
year’s end or from time to time during the financial year as disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements.
The Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

08 Strategic overview

The Directors of State Trustees Limited are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards, and the financial reporting requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, and for such internal control as
the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

10 Our performance

In note 2 (a), the Directors also state, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards that the financial report complies
with International Financial Reporting Standards.

12 Our products and services

Auditor’s Responsibility

20 Our people
24 Client and community engagement
30 Service excellence
33 Financial statements

As required by the Corporations Act 2001 and Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the
audit, which has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial report is free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The audit
procedures selected depend on judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, consideration is given to the internal control relevant to the company’s preparation
of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the eﬀectiveness of the company’s and the consolidated entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is suﬃcient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

This annual report details State Trustees’ business performance for the 2011 to 2012
financial year. At State Trustees we are committed to transparent and open reporting.
The report provides a concise summary of our performance for the financial year
ending 30 June 2012. It reviews our performance against our strategic objectives
and records our financial performance in accordance with the requirements of the
State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act 1994 and other regulatory requirements.
* All case studies that appear in this annual report are based on real client
experience. Names and other personal details have been changed in order
to protect confidentiality.
Any similarity between a person’s name and circumstances to the
scenario described here is unintended and coincidental.
State Trustees Limited ABN 68 064 593 148 AFSL No. 238037

Independence
The Auditor-General’s independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor General is not subject to direction by any person
about the way in which his powers and responsibilities are to be exercised. In conducting the audit, the Auditor-General, his staﬀ and delegates
complied with all applicable independence requirements of the Australian accounting profession and the Corporations Act 2001. I confirm that
I have given to the Directors of the company a written independence declaration, a copy of which is included in the Directors’ Report.
Opinion
In my opinion,
a) the financial report of State Trustees Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
i) giving a true and fair view of the company’s and the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2012 and of their financial
performance for the year ended on that date
ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001
b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 2 (a).
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Report
This auditor’s report relates to the financial report of State Trustees Limited for the year ended 30 June 2012 included both in State Trustees
Limited’s annual report and on the website. The Directors of State Trustees Limited are responsible for the integrity of State Trustees Limited’s
website. I have not been engaged to report on the integrity of State Trustees Limited’s website. The auditor’s report refers only to the subject
matter described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements.
If users of the financial report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard
copy of the audited financial report to confirm the information contained in the website version of the financial report.

D.D.R. Pearson Auditor-General
Melbourne 23 August 2012
Level 24, 35 Collins Street, Melbourne Vic. 3000
Telephone 61 3 8601 7000 • Facsimile 61 3 8601 7010
Email comments@audit.vic.gov.au • Website www.audit.vic.gov.au
Auditing in the Public Interest
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Our customer service oﬃces

Copies of this annual report can be
obtained by:

• Melbourne
168 Exhibition Street
Melbourne Victoria 3000

• visiting our website
www.statetrustees.com.au
• telephoning State Trustees
03 9667 6444
1300 138 672 (local call cost from
outside the metropolitan area)
Location
Our registered oﬃce and principal place
of business is:
• 168 Exhibition Street
Melbourne Victoria 3000
Telephone 03 9667 6444

• Glen Waverley
Suite 22, 2nd floor
40 Montclair Avenue
Glen Waverley Victoria 3150
• Dandenong
Shop 4, 157 Lonsdale Street
(corner of Foster Street)
Dandenong Victoria 3175
• Bendigo
41 Edward Street
Bendigo Victoria 3550
• Personal Financial Administration
593 Bourke Street
Melbourne Victoria 3000

For further information
and to contact us:
access us online at
www.statetrustees.com.au
or contact all our oﬃces on
9667 6444 or 1300 138 672.
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